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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited —
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HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited
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Cayman Islands
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Gongming Sub-district Office
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Tsuen Wan, N.T. Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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PO Box 2681
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Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Share Listing

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock code: 2283)

Company Website

http://www.tkmold.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

57 ¥ 18 2

Result E4
Revenue A
Profit attributable to owners of EN/NEIE DN )
the Company (Note 1) = A (K aET)
Basic earnings per share (HK dollars) ~ E A& R ZF| (1)
Proposed final dividend per share BEORRBARE
(HK dollars) (&)
Financial position E 379
Net current assets mEVEEFE
Gross profit margin RS
Net profit margin F ) &
Current ratio (Note 2) BN R (i iE2)
Quick ratio (Note 3) BB LR (HiE3)
Gearing ratio (Note 4) EEBELERME4)
Net debt to equity ratio (Note 5) SFETE M R (HE5)
Return on equity (Note 6) B& AN B3R & (ff7F6)
Return on assets (Note 7) BERRE(HaE7)

Notes:

(1)

@)

3)

@

)

©)

7)

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is derived at after the
deduction of the listing expenses. (2013: approximately HK$16.3 million, 2012:
approximately HK$3.1 million)

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current
liabilities and multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total loan by total equity and multiplying
the resulting value by 100%.

Net debt to equity ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.
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2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 % Change
TET FET EE%
1,197,852 1,095,985 9.3%
121,348 135,193 -10.2%
0.22 0.27 -18.5%
0.018 — N/A
PAVILY) 50,493 331.3%
27.7% 33.9% -6.2%
10.1% 12.3% -2.2%
141.3% 108.4% 30.4%
106.4% 83.5% 27.4%
45.7% 77.5% -41.1%
-44.1% 43.5% -201.4%
32.8% 48.9% -33.0%
12.7% 14.2% -10.7%

Hit -

(1) EXRAHEBAENSFE G LT EA -
(20134 - #9163 8 B BT + 2012F : 3.1 5
#ET)

2) FREHFERZBDEERUREEEBEHE
1BETIA100% 51 & -

(3) BEOHFETHEERLGFERUTEEE
AT ZEF LA 100% 51 & -

(4) BEBEHFEEBELEGUENEEDE
Fr 2 1B X 100% 5+ 5 »

(5) JFEEHEEGHFIEFEEG A Em BB
FET1Z B FE LA 100% 51 & -

(6) R[]I F IR T 18 5 T A 25 48 58
HEATZE LA 100% 51 & -

(7)  BELRLFIZGRFE R FIGAEEEEE

FET1Z B FE LA 100% 51 & -



FTHAT
HK$'000

1,200,000

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

Five Year Revenue — by business segments

S5FRA—RER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)
B 5 e 22 (48)

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Mold fabrication Plastic components manufacturing m Total
RASUE BRI RGE A%
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THET FHET FHET THET
(unaudited)
(REEEF)
Mold fabrication RE R 244,150 261,264 378,286 356,245 476,024
Plastic components ABENGRE
manufacturing 240,454 274,840 403,464 739,740 721,828
Total HES 484,604 536,104 781,750 1,095,985 1,197,852
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To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (“Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual results report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The year 2013 carried special significance for the Group. In addition to
the celebration of the 30th anniversary of our founding, the Company
was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20 December 2013 (the “Listing”), a
major step forward in our distinguished history. We were ready to present
our solid business results supplemented by our excellent corporate culture
and strong development potential to the international capital market. As
Confucius once said, “I stood firm at thirty.” The Group has opened a
new chapter. From now on, we will continue to consolidate our base in
Guangdong and Hong Kong with an eye fixed on the entire China market
and the wider world, using our industry-leading capability and abundant
experience to capture market opportunities and optimise our business.

Last year, we saw signs of the gradual recovery of the global economy.
The US retail and employment market began to improve and the bond
crisis in Europe also showed evidence it was alleviating, thus it is expected
that the world will soon rise from the global economic trough. The
stabilisation of the global economy has facilitated the steady development
of our mold and plastic component businesses. The demand for high
precision molds and plastic components is stronger as more and more
industries prefer plastic components instead of metal and glass, hence
creating more opportunities and room for our development.

During the year under review, the Group's total turnover amounted to
HK$1,197.9 million (2012: HK$1,096.0 million), 9.3% higher than the
previous year. The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately
HK$331.7 million (2012: HK$371.7 million) with a gross profit margin at
27.7% (2012: 33.9%). Profit attributable to owners of the Company
reached HK$121.3 million (2012: HK$135.2 million) with a net profit
margin of 10.1% (2012: 12.3%). Excluding the listing expense of
approximately HK$16.3 million recognised in 2013, adjusted net profit
was HK$137.6 million, which was in line with that of 2012. Basic
earnings per share amounted to HK$0.22 (2012: HK$0.27).
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BAR(HEIA%EE]) # 12013912 A 31
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To meet the strong demand for high precision molds and plastic
components in the market, the Group plans to expand production
capacity in an orderly manner. Through acquiring equipment for the
Shenzhen and Suzhou production bases, the Company is reinforcing its
position as a one-stop total plastics solution provider. In Shenzhen, in
addition to the plan to build a new business unit specialising in ultra-large
standard molds to tap into the strong demand for automotive industry
related products, we plan to purchase more plastic injection equipment
during the year to bolster related production capacity. Besides, we have
leased a factory in Suzhou, Jiangsu Province to expand the production of
plastic components in order to facilitate business development in Eastern
China. We believe that the new business unit and our enlarged capacity
will further expand our revenue sources and more effectively control
production costs.

Capitalising on our expertise in molds and the plastic injection industry
and deep understanding of the market, the Group will continue to
identify and evaluate fast-growing industry sectors and establish a
relationship with related partners. After three decades of development,
the Group has built an extensive customer base which covers the home
electrical appliances, communications equipment, automobile, mobile
phone and medical equipment industries, reducing our reliance on any
particular industry. During the year, we have continued to explore new
opportunities, building on our existing customer base. These efforts have
brought us into contact with new customers with enormous growth
potential. For example, we have signed a collaborative agreement with a
sales representative from Germany, a successful move to expand our
business coverage geographically.

In light of the importance of research and development (“R&D")
capability for future growth, the Group continued its efforts to optimise
workflow and production processes so as to provide innovative, quality
and competitive products for the market. The Group is a technology
company focusing on the production of plastic injection molds and plastic
components. The increasing popularity of high-end consumer electronic
products has boosted the demand for high precision molds and special
decorative molding, and, in turn, creates wide scope for the Group’s
development.
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Looking ahead to 2014, we believe that the market will be filled with
challenges and opportunities. Along with the increasing demand for
products from consumers, as product design becomes more complex, the
quality requirements will become more stringent. Our advanced
technology enables us to produce high precision plastic components in
mass volume to meet the huge market demand. The increased popularity
of the internet and informatisation will enhance market transparency and
put more pressure on traditional industries. However, molds squarely
belong to the equipment sector, and can be considered the mother of
industries, so their fundamental position is unshakable. We believe a
transparent market will speed up the elimination of the weaker players in
the industry and provide more opportunities for the Group’s
development.

In the meantime, according to an IPSOS research report, the total
production output value of plastic injection molds with MT3 precision
level or above in China will increase at a compound annual growth rate
of around 10.0% from 2013 to 2017, while those of plastic components
would have a compound annual growth rate (“CAGR") of around 15.0%
from 2013 to 2017. In response to accelerating industry development,
the Group will seize the chance to expand its production capacity and
customer base. It will also seek opportunities to acquire other mold
manufacturers with the aim of increasing its market share. The Group will
continue to enhance its design capability and production technology, and
expand its business coverage en route to becoming the world’s leading
one-stop total plastics solution provider.

Under the leadership of our visionary and experienced management
team, we have confidence in the prospects of the Group and will
continue to grow, building on the success of last year, generating better
returns for shareholders.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude for the
unwavering support of all business partners, customers and shareholders,
and the contributions of the management and all staff of the Group for
the past year. We believe that their dedication and efforts will contribute
to the strong momentum for the Group and we will be able to achieve
significant growth in the future.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Business Review

As a leading provider of one-stop total plastics solutions in China, the
Group is primarily engaged in the design, fabrication and production of
plastic injection molds and high-precision plastic components. Capitalising
on its advanced manufacturing and R&D capabilities, the Group provides
one-stop professional services to a diverse range of internationally
renowned companies, covering product design and optimisation, mold
fabrication, plastic injection production, secondary processing services
and final assembly, which facilitates cross-selling of its products and
services.

During the year under review, the Group achieved business growth,
driven by the steady recovery of the global economy and the increasing
market demand for high-precision molds. During the year, the Group’s
total turnover amounted to approximately HK$1,197.9 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 9.3% (2012:
HK$1,096.0 million). The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately
HK$331.7 million (2012: HK$371.7 million) with a gross profit margin of
approximately 27.7% (2012: 33.9%).

The Group recorded a profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$121.3 million (2012: HK$135.2 million).
The net profit margin was approximately 10.1% (2012: 12.3%). While
the gross profit margin decreased by 6.2 percentage points, as the Group
effectively controlled management costs, the net profit margin decreased
by only 2.2 percentage points. Excluding the listing expense of
approximately HK$16.3 million recognised in 2013, adjusted net profit
was approximately HK$137.6 million, which was in-line with that of
2012. Basic earnings per share were approximately HK$0.22 (2012:
HK$0.27).

Business Segment Analysis

The income of the mold fabrication business division was mainly derived
from sales of performance molds and standard molds. The turnover of
this business segment amounted to approximately HK$476.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 33.6% when compared to
approximately HK$356.2 million last year, accounting for approximately
39.7% of the Group’s total turnover. The growth was mainly attributable
to increased orders from new customers and existing customers,
particularly driven by the rising demand of customers from the automotive
industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued]

Molds are the foundation of any industrial process. The Group possesses
technical capabilities and expertise in fabricating high-quality plastic
injection molds which are applied to the manufacturing of plastic
components for products across a wide range of industries, such as
commercial telecommunications equipment, automobiles, household
electrical appliances, video game devices, digital devices, mobile phones,
pachinko and medical devices. The Group's high-precision molds are in
compliance with the most precise criteria according to the related
national standards in China and also meet overseas customers’
increasingly stringent requirements. The trend of product personalisation
has led to a greater variety of product designs, thereby boosting the
demand for high-precision plastic injection molds. As overseas clients pay
much closer attention to the precision, reliability, tooling-life and quality
of the molds, the Group, through the expertise of an experienced R&D
team, has continued to enhance the design and fabrication of molds it
supplies and to improve its craftsmanship and production processes so as
to meet the strict demands of the customers.
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The income of the plastic components manufacturing business decreased
slightly by approximately 2.4% to approximately HK$721.8 million (2012:
HK$739.7 million). The notable decrease in market demand for the
consumer products of video game device has led to a decline in related
orders. Nevertheless, as the Group has established a diversified and
balanced customer base, the variation in orders placed by certain
customers has not made a significant impact on the overall performance
of this segment. The increase in orders from mobile phone customers has
largely offset the decrease in orders for video game device customers.

Equipped with advanced production facilities and professional engineering
technologies, the Group’s plastic components business division is able to
provide diverse product solutions to its customers. The plastic components
manufactured by the Group are widely used in all industries in fast-
growing markets, covering mobile accessories, video game devices,
consumer electronics and medical devices. In recent years, there has been
significant growth in consumers’ demand for high quality and
sophisticated consumer electronics products. Therefore, the Group can
capitalise on its industry-leading technical capability to tap the enormous
opportunities in the high-end consumer electronics market.

During the year, the Group had capital expenditure of approximately
HK$64.4 million. In early 2014, it has also rented a production plant in
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, China to expand the production capacity of
plastic components. The rented plant is planned to commence operation
in the second half of 2014 and will facilitate the Group’s business
development in Eastern China.

As a vertically integrated one-stop plastics solutions provider, the Group’s
mold fabrication business and plastic components business can leverage
strong synergies and both businesses are complementary. Thus the Group
can provide customised, cost effective and streamlined design and
fabrication services to its customers, facilitate cross-selling of its
businesses and enhance its technical expertise. The management believes
that the reputation of the Group in mold fabrication can attract
customers, which would help the Group to secure more orders for
manufacturing plastic components.
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Financial Review

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
HK$1,197.9 million, representing an increase of approximately HK$101.9
million, or approximately 9.3%, from revenue of approximately
HK$1,096.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The mold fabrication segment revenue for the year ended 31 December
2013 was approximately HK$476.0 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$119.8 million, or approximately 33.6%, from segment
revenue of HK$356.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2012. This
increase was primarily due to an increase in sales to customers in the
automotive industry of approximately HK$161.8 million, or approximately
140.6% from approximately HK$115.1 million in 2012 to approximately
HK$276.9 million in 2013.

The plastic components manufacturing segment revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2013 was approximately HK$721.8 million,
representing a slight decrease of approximately HK$17.9 million, or
approximately 2.4%, from segment revenue of approximately HK$739.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2012. There was a decrease in
sales to customers in the video games industry of approximately
HK$114.9 million, or approximately 75.1%, from approximately
HK$152.9 million in 2012 to approximately HK$38.0 million in 2013.
However, such decrease was offset by the increase in sales to customers
from mobile phone and Pachinko industries by approximately 40.5% and
approximately 21.2% respectively.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
HK$331.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$40.0
million, or approximately 10.8%, from gross profit of approximately
HK$371.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2012. The decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit in plastic components
manufacturing segment.

Segment gross profit margin for mold fabrication for 2013 was
approximately 39.1% which dropped from approximately 47.5% for
2012. The decrease in gross profit margin was primarily due to a
significant decrease in sales to customers, with high gross profit margin,
in household electrical appliances industry.

Segment gross profit margin for plastic components manufacturing for
2013 was approximately 20.2%, compared to approximately 27.4% for
2012. The decrease in gross profit margin was primarily due to a
significant decrease in sales to a key customer, with high gross profit
margin, in the video games industry.
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Other income for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
HK$30.3 million, an increase of approximately HK$12.8 million, or
approximately 73.1%, from other income of approximately HK$17.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2012. The increase was primarily
due to an increase in the sale of scrap and surplus materials resulting
from change in product mix.

The Group had a net loss for other gains/(losses) of approximately HK$0.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$7.1 million, or approximately 110.9%, from a net gain
of approximately HK$6.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
The decrease was primarily due to (1) the decrease of net foreign
exchange gain and (2) the fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments and the disposals of derivative financial instruments in 2013.

Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2013 were
approximately HK$59.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$4.0 million, or approximately 7.2%, from selling expenses of
approximately HK$55.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
The increase was primarily due to the increase in transportation cost
which aligned with the increase in revenue.

Despite the listing expenses incurred in year 2013, administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2013 dropped to
approximately HK$126.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$16.6 million, or approximately 11.6%, from
administrative expenses of approximately HK$142.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The decrease was primarily due to the
decrease in (1) employee benefit expenses, (2) water, electricity and
utility, (3) advisory and legal service expenses and (4) reversal of allowance
for impairment of inventories.

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2013 were approximately
HK$6.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$4.7 million,
or approximately 42.0%, from finance costs of approximately HK$11.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2012. The decrease was primarily
due to the decrease in bank borrowings for 2013 as compared to 2012.
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Income tax expenses for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately HK$47.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$3.2 million, or approximately 6.3%, from income tax expense of
approximately HK$51.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
The decrease was due to a decrease in the taxable profit for the year.

As a result of foregoing, profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately HK$121.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$13.8 million, or approximately 10.2%, from
approximately HK$135.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
Had the listing expenses not been incurred during the year, the profit for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is on the same level with the profit for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$217.8 million (2012: HK$50.5 million). The Group had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$332.6 million (2012:
HK$94.1 million). The increase in cash and cash equivalents by the end of
2013 was mainly attributable to the net proceeds received from the
Listing of approximately HK$237.7 million. The current ratio of the Group
as at 31 December 2013 was approximately 1.4 (2012: 1.1).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2013 was approximately
HK$370.3 million (2012: HK$276.4 million). The gearing ratio (which was
calculated by dividing total loan amount by total equity amount of the
Group) as at 31 December 2013 was approximately 45.7% (2012:
77.5%).

The Group has maintained adequate financial resources to fulfil its future
commitments and make future investment for expansion.
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Debt Maturity Profile

The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is set out below:

Within 1 year 15N
Between 1 and 2 years 18229 K
Between 2 and 5 years 2ES5F A
Over 5 years 5 A £

Pledged Assets

Details of pledged assets as at 31 December 2013 are set out in note
27(a) to the financial statements.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group mainly operated in the PRC, and is exposed to foreign currency
risks arising from various currency exposures, mainly with respect to HK
dollar, US dollar, Euro and Renminbi (“RMB”). Exchange rate fluctuations
and market trends have always been of concern to the Group. Foreign
currency hedging of the Group has been managed by our chief finance
officer, and overseen by our chief executive officer. In accordance with
our hedging needs and the then foreign exchange situation, our chief
financial officer would collect and analyse information regarding various
hedging instruments and determine stop-loss thresholds. Our chief
financial officer would then collect quotations from various banks as to
the financial instrument and present such quotations to our chief
executive officer, who would then evaluate and make a decision as to
whether to enter into the relevant hedging agreement. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

Since the Listing and up to 31 December 2013, the Group had not
entered into any hedging arrangements.

The Group's cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in HK$.
Its operating cash inflows and outflows were primarily denominated in
RMB, US$ and HKS$. The Group will closely monitor the interest rate
movements and regularly review its other banking facilities so as to
mitigate the expected interest rate risk.
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Capital Commitments

Details of capital commitments as at 31 December 2013 are set out in
Note 33(a) to the financial statements.

Use of Proceeds from the Company’s Initial Public
Offering

On 20 December 2013, the Company received the net proceeds, after
deducting the underwriting commissions and the relevant expenses
associated with the Listing, in the sum of approximately HK$235.6
millions raised from the Listing. As at 31 December 2013, all the net
proceeds were kept in banks. The Directors are of the opinion that the
net proceeds will be applied in the coming years to their intended uses as
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 11 December 2013 (the
“Prospectus”).

Plans for Material Capital Investments

Subject to the Board'’s final approval, the Group plans to invest in capacity
expansion and related investments to capture the potential growth of our
business in business for the coming year in the manner set out in the
section headed “Future Plans and use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.
The source of funding would be primarily from the net proceeds from the
Listing and bank borrowings.

Staff Policy

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 2,947 full-time employees (2012:
3,222) and had 290 dispatched workers dispatched to us from third-party
staffing companies (2012: 141).

The Group’s remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration
packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent directors and
employees. The Group believes the remuneration packages are reasonable
and competitive and in line with market trends. The Group has put in
place a share option scheme for its directors and employees in a bid to
provide a competitive remuneration package for the Group’s long term
growth and development. The Group also provides appropriate training
and development programmes to its employees to enhance the staff's
work ability and personal effectiveness.
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We have implemented training programmes for our employees to meet
different job requirements. We believe that these initiatives have
contributed to increased employee productivity.

As required by PRC regulations, we make contributions to mandatory
social security funds for the benefit of our PRC employees that provide for
pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and
housing funds.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

Since the Listing and up to 31 December 2013, the Group has made no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Future Plan and Prospects

In view of the gradual recovery of global consumer confidence, the
management believes that the market has passed through the downturn
and will slowly revive. The total production value of high-precision plastic
injection molds and plastic components is expected to maintain its
upward trend, which favours the Group’s development prospects.
Therefore, the Group remains prudent yet optimistic about its prospects
for 2014.

Moving ahead, the Group is poised to capture the opportunities to
expedite its growth by further increasing investments in production and
R&D, enhancing the application and R&D of new technologies and new
craftsmanship in a bid to provide high quality precision molds and plastic
components.

Regarding the development of the mold fabrication business, the Group
will establish a new business unit specialising in ultra-large standard
molds for the manufacture of instrument panels, bumpers and door
panels for the automotive industry with the aim of meeting the huge
demand of the automotive industry for these molds. Meanwhile, the
Group also plans to add a performance mold business unit in order to
cater for the growing demand of its plastic injection business for high-end
consumer electronics and tap into this fast-growing market trend.
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In addition, in order to strategically expand our customer base, the Group
will continue to cover more customers located in the United States, Japan
and Europe and provide better services for our existing overseas
customers. At the beginning of 2014, we have entered into a cooperative
agreement with a sales representative from Germany to further extend
the Group's business presence. We will also actively seek other mold
fabricators who suit the scale of the Group and generate synergies for
potential acquisition to facilitate the Group’s business expansion and
enlarge its market share globally. Moreover, the Group will continue to
identify more projects with higher margins to drive business development.

As for the plastic injection molding business, the Group will optimise its
production capacity in Eastern China. The newly rented production plant
in Suzhou will commence production in the second half of this year,
thereby boosting Suzhou plant’s production capacity of plastic
components by approximately 50%. With the upgraded production
capability, we believe that the new plant will help enhance the flexibility
of providing better services to our present Suzhou customers and other
potential customers, consequently bolstering the Group’s competitiveness
in Eastern China. At the same time, the Group will continue to expand
the production capacity of the Shenzhen Tangjia plants so as to meet the
demand of its new plastic components business.

Leveraging its core strength of providing one-stop services, the Group will
further improve production efficiency and optimise its customer network
to drive its business performance. The Group will continue to adhere to
prudent finance management principles while monitoring and evaluating
market trends and actively reinforcing our operational capability to
achieve steady business growth.

Developments as to Defects to Land Title with
Respect to the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants

Reference is made to the Prospectus and the announcement of the
Company dated 20 March 2014. Unless otherwise defined herein,
capitalised terms used in this section shall have the same meanings as
those defined in the Prospectus. In the course of application by TK
Technology (Shenzhen) to convert the existing green-type property
ownership certificate, TK Technology (Shenzhen) was informed by the
Land Bureau that the Bureau of Urban Planning and Land Commission of
Shenzhen Municipality (FIITEEIE+Z) is currently examining policy
proposals regarding the conversion of land use from high-technology
project to commercial use by payment of land premium for submission
for the approval of the municipal government. Therefore TK Technology
(Shenzhen) should submit the written application after the promulgation
of the relevant policy.
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According to the relevant laws and regulations of Shenzhen, leasing of
the Shenzhen Tangjia Land must be approved by the Land Bureau and a
land premium shall be paid, as TK Technology (Shenzhen) currently holds
a green-type property ownership certificate. The Company’s PRC legal
advisers confirmed that the relevant laws and regulations of Shenzhen do
not specify any penalty for leasing of the Shenzhen Tangjia Land for high-
technology project purposes without obtaining prior approval and paying
the land premium, such as confiscation of the land or the eviction of the
tenant.

The Company has the contingency arrangements as disclosed in the
Prospectus in place and will adopt such measures when it is necessary.
Such contingency arrangements include relocating to the Backup Plants
by exercising the Company’s right to request the Backup Plants Landlord
to enter into the formal lease agreement with the Company within 15
days from the Company’s notice to the Backup Plants Landlord for one or
more of the Backup Plants pursuant to the Pre-lease Agreements.
Towards the expiry of the Pre-lease Agreements, in the event that TK
Technology (Shenzhen) has yet to convert the green-type property
ownership certificate into red-type property ownership certificate, the
Company shall seek to either renew the Pre-lease Agreements or engage
another party for a similar arrangement. For details of the contingency
arrangements, please refer to the section headed “Business — Properties
— Plans to Resolve Risks Related to Certain of Our Leased Properties” of
the Prospectus.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 54, is the chairman of the group. Mr. Li is one of
the founders of the group and was appointed as an executive director on
28 March 2013. He is also the chairman of the Board and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible for
the overall management and strategic planning of the Group. He has
accumulated more than 30 years of professional experience in plastic
mold fabrication and plastic injection molding and also experience in
business management in the manufacturing industry. Mr. Li together with
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and an executive director of
the Company, established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY in Hong
Kong in 1983, and have since expanded the Group’s mold fabrication
business into PRC in 1992 and moved the operations in Shenzhen, the
PRC. Mr. Li was elected the “"Winner of Young Industrialist Awards of
Hong Kong” in 2003 and “Outstanding Person of Shenzhen Machinery
Industry” in 2004. Mr. Li holds several social titles, including serving as a
committee member of Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in 2010, the President of Guang Ming General Chamber of
Commerce (Industry and Commerce), the President of Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Council, the Chairman of Kowloon City District Road Safety
Campaign Committee, vice chairman of Federation of Hong Kong
Shenzhen Association Limited, vice president of Shenzhen Overseas
Chinese International Association, the executive director of Shenzhen
General Chamber of Commence, the honourary vice chairman of charity
committee of Shenzhen Guangming New District. In July 1974, Mr. Li
graduated from Yuanzhou Gongshe Lulan Primary School in Boluo,
Guangdong in China, and obtained a middle school graduation
certificate. Mr. Li is also the controlling shareholder and director of both
Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company)
and Lead Smart Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), and the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, aged 52, is the executive director and
the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also the member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung has approximately
25 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic injection
molding. He was appointed as executive director of the Group on 28
March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible for formulation and implementation
of the business plan of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yung
acted as a buyer in National Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May
1985 to August 1987. He was promoted to Component Engineer in May
1987. From August 1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at AST
Research (Far East) Ltd. as procurement engineer. Mr. Yung joined the
Group in 1989 as the general manager and was primarily responsible for
operation management for the molding business. He served as the
managing director of the Group since 2000, mainly responsible for
business development and the daily operations of the Group’s business.
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Mr. Yung graduated for the Department of Industrial Engineering of the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor's degree of Science in
Engineering in November 1983. He also graduated from the Centre of
Buddhist Studies of the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of
Hong Kong with a Master’'s Degree in Buddhist Studies in November
2008. Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and director of Eastern Mix
Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company), and the
controlling shareholder and director of Cheer Union Development Ltd. (a
substantial Shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 52, is the executive director of the Group. He
is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as executive
director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee has approximately 30
years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic injection
molding. Mr. Lee together with Mr. Li Pui Leung (a controlling
shareholder, the Chairman and an executive director of the Company)
established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY, in 1983. He has been
holding the position of manager, mainly responsible for procurement for
the Group. From August 2009 to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the
EMBA training classes of Graduate School of Tsinghua University, China,
and obtained a certificate of completion. In June 2013, Mr. Lee obtained
a degree of master of business administration from the University of
Wales, the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is also the shareholder and director
of Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the
Company), the controlling shareholder and director of Normal Times
International Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), and the
younger brother of Mr. Li Pui Leung.

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 51, was appointed as an executive director
and chief financial officer of the Group on 27 November 2013. Mr.
Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as a corporate financial controller
and was mainly responsible for the finance, taxation, audit and
investment of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had
served at Deloitte Ross Tohmatsu (current known as “Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu”) and served as financial controller for a FORTUNE 500
manufacture company, and manufacturing companies listed in Hong
Kong and the U.S.. He has accumulated 26 years of experience in the
field of auditing, accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Cheung
graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (the predecessor of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1987 with a major in accounting, and
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
since January 1996 and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since September 1990.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, B8S /P, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 November
2013. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Dr. Chung obtained a doctoral degree in engineering
from the University of Warwick in May 2010 and Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from City University of Macau in September 2012.
He was appointed as an Industrial Professor by the University of Warwick,
the United Kingdom in December 2010. He was awarded an honourary
doctorate of business administration by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in December 2007 and an honourary degree, Doctor of the
University, by the University of Newcastle, Australia in July 2006
respectively. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal by
the Hong Kong SAR Government effective on 1 July 2011. He was also
appointed as Justice of Peace by the Hong Kong SAR Government
effective on 1 July 2005 and won the Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Award in 1997.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and currently a non-executive director of
Techtronic Industries Company Limited (stock code: 669), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Since September 2012, Dr. Chung has been
an independent non-executive director of KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3816), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He has also
been an independent non-executive director of Kin Yat Holdings Limited
(stock code: 638), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 30
January 1997.

Dr. Chung has extensive involvement in various social bodies and
institutions. He is currently the honourary chairman of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries and the vice-chairman of Hong Kong Design Centre
and the Hong Kong Standards and Testing Centre. He is also the Court
Chairman of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the vice-chairman
of Vocational Training Council. Dr. Chung was also a member of Steering
Committee on Innovation and Technology Commission until January
2014.

Dr. Chung is an active member in different charitable organisation. He is
the founder of Bright Future Charitable Foundation and is a member of
the Board of the Hong Kong Paediatric Foundation. He is the chairman of
the executive committee of both the Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong
Limited and the Boys’ and Girls" Clubs Association of Hong Kong
respectively.
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Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 November 2013. He is also
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Ho was appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 7 March 2014. Mr. Ho
obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from the University of Sydney,
Australia in May 1988 and a master of commence specialised in finance
from the University of New South Wales, Australia in April 1991. Mr. Ho
was awarded as Chartered Financial Analyst by the Institute of Chartered
Financial Analysts in September 1998 and is a CFA charterholder.

Mr. Ho has previously served as Head of China Research, Senior Research
Analyst and Vice President in Institutional Equities in international financial
institutions, including Credit Lyonnais, JP Morgan and HSBC. Mr. Ho
joined HSBC Group since November 2004. In June 2008, he was
appointed as Head of Research, China, serving and acting as the
representative in the Beijing Representative office of HSBC. As at January
2013, Mr. Ho worked as a Hong Kong China Equity sales director for
HSBC. Since November 2013, Mr. Ho has been an independent non-
executive director of TLT Lottotainment Group Limited (stock code: 8022),
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 November 2013. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang was appointed a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 7 March 2014. Mr. Tsang
is a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China
and has over 30 years of experience in auditing and providing support for
initial public offerings and acquisition transactions. From July 1978 to
June 2011, Mr. Tsang worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong
and China. Mr. Tsang received a bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from Chinese University of Hong Kong in June 1978. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 1991, a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since May 2004 and a fellow member of the
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants since March 1989.
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Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of the
following companies listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited (stock code:
133), PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2078) and
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (stock code: 460). Mr. Tsang
is currently also an independent director of Agria Corporation (a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange; stock code: GRO), and an
alternate director of PGG Wrightson Limited (a company listed on the
New Zealand Stock Exchange; stock code: PGW). He was a director of
PGG Wrightson Limited from November 2011 to December 2012.

Senior Management

Ms. Lam Hon Ying Gloria, aged 42, joined the Group in January 2013
as corporate financial controller, and is responsible for the Group and
plants finance operation. Prior to joining the Group, she worked for a
FORTUNE 500 company listed in the U.S. and a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and was responsible for internal auditing and
finance. She has approximately 19 years of experience in auditing and
finance. She obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration
(accounting) from San Francisco State University, the U.S. in January 1994
and a degree of master of business administration from Hong Kong
Baptist University in December 2002. She has also been a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since August 2012,
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since January 2007 and an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since August 2007.

Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 37, is the chief marketing director of
the Group. Mr. Lok joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed
as the chief marketing director of the Group. He was mainly responsible
for sales and marketing affairs of the plastics components manufacturing
division. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lok had approximately eight years
of experience in Plastics industry. Mr. Lok previously served as the
application development manager of GE Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr.
Lok graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.

Mr. Bergstrom, Carl Thomas, aged 60, is the general manager of the
Group and is responsible for performance mold business units. Mr.
Bergstrom has more than 35 years of experience in injection molding and
mold fabrication. He was the founder and owner of Toolcad AB founded
in 1985, which was sold to Angpanneforeningen AB in 1995. Prior to
joining the Group in September 2007, he was the managing director of
Perlos Precision Molds (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. Mr. Bergstrom completed a
diploma in mechanical engineering from Sven Eriksonskolan, Boras in
Sweden in June 1976.
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Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 34, is the deputy general manager of the
Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May 2002, and was appointed as the
deputy general manger of the Group in January 2009, responsible for the
development of the mold fabrication business, project management and
the management of affairs in respect of technology, quality and sourcing
management, Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou University of Light
Industry in July 2000 with a diploma of high molecular material machining
specialised in mold design and manufacturing.

Mr. Xing Fu Zhi, aged 37, is the internal audit manager of the Group.
Mr. Xing joined the Group in November 2011, and was appointed as the
internal audit manager of the Group, responsible for the internal audit of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xing had approximately 13
years of experience in finance and audit. Mr. Xing has held positions such
as assistant accountant in a Wal-Mart China company, senior internal
control consultant in an IBM joint venture in China, finance manager and
internal audit manager in Hitachi GST China. During his service in IBM
and Hitachi, he was involved in a number of projects including ERP
implementation and SOX compliance. Mr. Xing became a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified internal
auditor of The Institute of Internal Auditors in November 2009. Mr. Xing
graduated in June 1998 form Sun Yat-sen University in the PRC with a
bachelor’s degree in economics, majoring in auditing.

Mr. Lui Shit Chun, aged 49, joined the Group and was appointed as the
general manager of the Group in March 2011, responsible for the overall
management of the plastic components manufacturing division. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Lui had worked in the plastics industry for
approximately ten years and has worked as the operations manager of
Nypro Hong Kong Ltd.. Mr. Lui graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 1994 with a higher certificate in
manufacturing engineering (plastics). He obtained a master’s degree in
procurement management from the University of Strathclyde (distant
learning) in the U.K. in October 2007.

Ms. Ma Fa Li, aged 39, is the director of administration and human
resources of the Group. Ms. Ma joined the Group in December 2003, and
was appointed as the director of administration and human resources of
the Group in January 2011, responsible for the human resource,
management, administration, information systems management and EHS
(Environment, Health and Safety). In March 2004, Ms. Ma graduated
from Northeastern University in the PRC with a master’s degree in
management science. From December 2010 to December 2011, she
completed JEEE 2 & A B (CHOMS Z (5 — HA)(Tsinghua enterprise
CHO outstanding class (phase 2)*) at Tsinghua University.

Company Secretary
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 51, is the company secretary. Please refer

to “Directors and Senior Management — Executive Directors — Mr.
Cheung Fong Wa" for further information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) since Listing.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code to date. Key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company are summarised
below.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’ dealing in
the Company’s securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code since Listing and up to 31
December 2013.

Compliance with the Written Guidelines for
Securities Transactions by the Relevant Employees
of the Company

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”),
governing securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess
inside information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident of
non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and
relevant employees in advance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued])

The Board

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting 4 executive directors
and 3 independent non-executive directors.

Executive directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual report.
Save as Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu are brothers, none of the
members of the Board is related to one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are held by Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined
and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practices whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business and implementing objectives,
policies, strategies and business plan of the Group approved and
delegated by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Since Listing (which is 20 December 2013) and up to the date of this
annual report (the “Report Period”), the Board has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors representing one-third of the
Board with at least one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experience and independent judgement to the
Board and they are invited to serve on the Board committees of the
Company. Through active participation at Board meeting, taking the lead
in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests, all independent
non-executive directors have made various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive directors to be independent in light of the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors and
Non-Executive Directors

All directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term, subject to
renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive director is
engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years. The appointment
may be terminated by either party by not less than 1 month’s written
notice. Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company
is appointed for a term of 1 year.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”). The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition, monitoring the appointment of directors and assessing the
independent non-executive directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued])

According to the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time being (if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. In addition,
any new director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the
Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting after
appointment, and any new director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company. The retiring directors are eligible for re-
election by the shareholders at the respective general meetings.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “2014
AGM"), Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr. Lee Leung
Yiu, Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai
Chung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, will retire at the 2014 AGM pursuant
to the Articles provisions stated in the foregoing paragraph. All the above
retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
2014 AGM. The Board and the Nomination Committee recommended
their re-appointment. The Company'’s circular, sent together with this
annual report, contains detailed information of the above retiring
directors as required by the Listing Rules.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board is also responsible for implementing policies in relation to
financial matters, which include risk management and internal controls
and compliance, if applicable. In addition, the Board reviews the financial
performance of the Group, approves investment proposals, nomination
of directors to the Board and the appointment of key management
personnel. These functions are carried out either directly or through board
committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee.

All directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to
the shareholders of the Company, the duties to act honestly and in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times and to avoid
conflicts of interests.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management,
with a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations. Any director may request for
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon reasonable request made to the Board.

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility for
performing corporate governance functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the Report Period, the Audit Committee has reviewed and
monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
the training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Employee Written Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration function of the
Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to the full
Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest of a substantial
shareholder or a director, material acquisitions and disposal of assets,
corporate or financial restructuring, share issuance and distribution of
dividend, and approval of financial results and corporate strategies. The
Board will review those issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued])

Continuing Professional Development of Directors

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Each newly appointed director received induction on the first occasion of
his appointment to ensure he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and he is fully aware of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

The directors are continually updated on changes and developments to
the Group's business and in the latest developments in the laws, rules
and regulations relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities. Directors’
training is an ongoing process. All directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses. Directors are
requested to provide their training records to the Company for record.

Up to the date of this annual report, the directors complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on participation in continuous
professional training as follows:

— All the directors (being Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael, Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, Dr. Chung Chi
Ping Roy, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong)
attended a training session conducted by the Company’s legal
advisers relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities under Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations.

— All directors (being Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael,
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy,
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong) received
regular briefings and updates from the Company Secretary on the
Group's business, operations and corporate governance matters.

—  Mr. Li Pui Leung Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their duties
and responsibilities, organised by professional firms/institutions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board
committee meetings of the Company held during the Report Period are
set out below:

o R T

EEERNHREHRBINERAESTER
ExgZ8ggm RSN T

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ 8RRE

Name of Director Board
EEHE Exe
Executive directors: HITEE :
Mr. Li Pui Leung MR AL 1”1
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung

Michael SEMEE 11
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TREBEE 171
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa oK I 2E SR A 1”1
Independent non-executive

directors: y’%’ﬁ HHITEE -
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EFiET 1/1
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung ﬂFﬁZ,uf‘EE 1/1
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BN A4 1”1

Note 1: Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr. Lee Leung Yiu and Mr.

Cheung Fong Wa also attended such Audit Committee meeting.

Note 2: Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Lee Leung Yiu and Mr. Cheung Fong Wa also attended

such Remuneration Committee meeting.

Note 3: Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr. Lee Leung Yiu and Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

also attended such Nomination Committee meeting.

Board Committees

The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee on 29
November 2013, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request. All the Board committees should report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
BitEEE FHEES REZE"

(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(FF5E1) (MF7E2) (FF3E3)
N/A 3 F N/A “F~3 A 11
N/A N3 BB 11 N/A T~ FB
N/A i N/A i N/A N3 A
N/A “N i N/A “NiE B N/A “~ 3 F
11 11 1/1

i7Al 11 171

11 11 171

Btax1: FHREL BEHELE FTRERELER

REEFLLENELEZENZREERH °

W52 FHR L TR AR FS R
EHEZTHES e -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued])

The Nomination Committee comprises 4 members, namely, Mr. Li Pui
Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
(appointed on 7 March 2014) and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the majority of
which are independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size
and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least once in any financial year and to make recommendation on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

The committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become board
members and makes recommendation to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the Nomination
Committee may make reference to certain criteria such as the Company’s
needs, board diversity, the integrity, experience, skills and professional
knowledge of the candidate and the amount of time and effort that the
candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities.
External recruitment professionals might be engaged to carry out
selection process when necessary.

According to the diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company,
the Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience) for implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board.

During the Report Period, the Nomination Committee has held 1 meeting
(the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in above
section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the
following major works:

—  Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

— Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring directors
standing for re-election at the 2014 AGM; and

— Assessment of the independence of all the Company’s independent
non-executive directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Remuneration Committee comprises 4 members, namely, Dr. Chung
Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr. Ho Kenneth
Kai Chung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (appointed on 7 March 2014), the
majority of which are independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The primary
objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration proposals of all
directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any
of associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

During the Report Period, the Remuneration Committee has held 1
meeting (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out
in above section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed
the following major works:

—  Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group; and

—  Consideration of the bonus payable to directors and senior
management for the year 2013 and the proposed salary increment
for the year 2014.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management, including those
members of senior management who are also executive directors, by
band for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
AR (B

500,000-1,000,000

1,000,001-1,500,000
1,500,001-2,000,000
2,000,001-2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000
3,000,001-3,500,000
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HBEALHTG2ERTEERG ZHB -
ZFEMELRBEARRNRBAZRE AR
MHEF RERMEE

ReEEHE FHZEedM —Rex(H
ZEgRENHECLHENEXEEZHRE
RCER]—&R)  WHETT THEETE:

— ROASENFMBRERE K

— ERENEENaRERE2013FE
ZAEAI R201AFE 2 EZE £ RIE ©

BREBECEEARATATAEXEBISK &
GEEEKE (BREANETHRTEENS
HEERBKE)RNE E2013F12A318 1t
FEZEFEHFMIZAR 2 EHOT

Number of individual

AE

- O O W wN

RISE(ZR) ARAR

—o—=FF% 37



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued])

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements contained in this annual report.

The Audit Committee comprises 3 members, namely, Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai
Chung, all are independent non-executive directors.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

— To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual terms raised by the external auditors before
submission to the Board.

—  To review the relationship with external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

— To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control system and
risk management system and procedures.

During the Report Period, the Audit Committee has held 1 meeting (the
attendance records of each Committee member are set out in above
section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the
following major works:

—  Review and discussion of the annual audited financial statements,
results announcement and report for the year ended 31 December
2013, the related accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and the relevant audit findings, the report from the
management on the Company’s internal control and risk
management review and processes;

—  Recommendation of the re-appointment of the external auditors;
and

—  Review of and monitoring the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Employee
Written Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The external auditor attended the above meeting to discuss with the
Audit Committee members on issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the appointment of external auditor.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who
fulfils the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheung are set out under “Directors and
Senior Management” section in this annual report. During the year ended
31 December 2013, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

External Auditor And Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2013 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 62 to 63.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
auditors, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are analysed below:

Type of services provided by the
external auditors

SELBAMREANREES

Audit services — audit fee for
the year ended 31 December 2013 HMZEE A
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Audit services fee for initial public offer

ERFE — HZ=2013F 128310 ILEE

SNEZBEHLET Lg% BEAERE
EXREBNRBA LM BREEES
=

H o

tE B8

mE}

REEINBZEEN T

o ok

EFEeuEE
SR

@
=
E—I_

NGNS

ARARIZABIMEERFTELE HFA
ETRBRBAMBCERRT - RAEEZRERE
FBRERNAFREBELRRLERE] —
fio B E2013F12A31BILFE - K& 4
BEXTALMIS/NEREEEEE -

S BS ez S5 6 A2 iz 8% 6 B =
ENSEEIS o Gk A A G E RN

2013F 12 A3 HIEFEMPT B RERMN ZE R
ETEHNECEIE MBI ZHAIRE A -

HZE2013FE 128318 LEE B/ BN

7 I B oK 38 g 5T RD 3 75 P B0 AR B R FE AR B
IREERDITIAT

Fees paid/payable

Bt BB A

HK$’'000

FET

approximately 2,954
#)2,954

approximately 3,830

#93,830
Other audit services HE M ZERE 200
200
Total: Bt approximately 6,984
476,984
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued])

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the
results and cash flows of the Group for that year and in compliance with
relevant law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, the
directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and have prepared disclosure of the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders investments and Company assets and
reviewing the effectiveness of such through Audit Committee on an
annual basis.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the Group,
reports to the Board on any material issues and makes recommendations.

For the purpose of Listing, the Company hired Protiviti (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
to review the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal control
system. They had communicated with the Company on their findings and
recommendations. On-going assessments and amendments have been
conducted by our internal audit department.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board considered that the
Group's internal control system is adequate and effective and the
Company has complied with the code provision on internal control of the
CG code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Shareholder Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meeting of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written
requisition.

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures for
shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”, may follow
the same procedures by sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong. The shareholder should state his/her proposals in the written
requisition and submit the written requisition as early as practicable to
enable the Company Secretary to make necessary arrangement.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring director
for election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, pursuant
to Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) should prepare a written notice duly signed by him/her of his/
her intention to propose a person for the election and a notice duly
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected.
These notices should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong or its share registrar at least 7 days prior to the
date of the general meeting. Where the notices are submitted after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting, the period for the
lodgment of the notices should commence on the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting and end not later than 7 days prior
to the date of the general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued])

Shareholders are welcome to send in enquires to the Board to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop No.
19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle
Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong.

Investor Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Groups' business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and investors to
make the best investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and, where applicable, the
chairman of the independent board committee are available to answer
questions at shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and updates on the
Company’s business operations and development, financial information
and other information are available to public access.

Constitutional Documents

Pursuant to a special resolution of the shareholders passed on 29
November 2013, the amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company were adopted with effect from the Listing
Date. Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2013,
there was no significant change in the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company.

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and the
audited accounts for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding. Principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 13 to the accounts.

Results and Dividend

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 64.

The Board has recommended the payment of final dividend of HK$1.8
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2013 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on 17 June 2014. The proposed final dividend is subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting which is scheduled to be held on 6 June 2014. The
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements as an
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement of
financial position. The final dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid
on 15 July 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to be
held on 6 June 2014, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 4 June 2014 to 6 June 2014, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares of
the Company should ensure that all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the
Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26/F, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (which address will be
changed to Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong with effect from 31 March 2014) for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on 3 June 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 13 June
2014 to 17 June 2014, both dates inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the
proposed final dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Branch Share Registrar at
the above address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 12 June
2014.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past five

financial years is set out on page 160. The summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant And Equipment

Details of the movement in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in Note 16 to the accounts.

Bank Borrowings

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2013
are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movement in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in Note 25 to the accounts.

44 TK Group (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2013

RETWR LA ZZERBREMNER K
ANEIEE2014F6 138 201456 A17H
(ERMBRREERN)EERERNBIEE
EFE HHEETEXEEARMNBEE
Lo BRFEEBKEBEZRAKRE - A2 F
BOMABLHEEABBRIIBRMDBF
X ERABBKRETENR2014F68 1218
THFARF 30D R E N EFT R AE B AR (D B P
ERORPEELTFE -

hFEIFilE
AEBEBEREVBEEFENEE BER
BENBMEHNFE160E - ZME W TEK
ERTMEHRER—BH -
M*E - M E KRR

AEEYE BERKERFRESHF
BHNREE N L6

wiTEE
AEENR2013FE12A31AWRITEEFSS
B B IS SRR B Rk 27 o

A% 7K

A2 A A 48 70 2 Y ) 5 1 R R B I
725



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders
of the Company.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities
of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the period from the
Listing to 31 December 2013.

Reserves

Details of the movement in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 25 and 26 to the accounts and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 67 to 68
respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law"”) amounted to approximately
HK$397,636,000 (2012: —), of which HK$14,879,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013 were HK$1,000,000 (2012: -).

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Li Pui Leung (appointed on 28 March 2013)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (appointed on 28 March 2013)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (appointed on 28 March 2013)

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa (appointed on 27 November 2013)

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy (appointed on 27 November 2013)
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (appointed on 27 November 2013)
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (appointed on 27 November 2013)

Sharon Pierson, who was the first director upon incorporation of the
Company, resigned on 28 March 2013.

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association, all the
existing directors of the Company will retire at the 2014 AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2014 AGM.

Directors’ Remuneration and the Five Highest Paid
Individuals

Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in Note 9 to the accounts.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Service Agreements

Each of the executive directors entered into a services agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date,
which may be terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors for a term of one year commencing
from the Listing Date, unless terminated by either party giving to the
other not less than one month’s notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service agreement which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and note 34 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debenture

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire by means of acquisition of shares, or debt securities, including
debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the directors
of the Company in the shares of the Company which have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

3z

%? B3 - 1ERAAR 1) 2 & 35 P

[FEAYN =]

R2013F12A31H  AAREERARQ A
MROFHEBEREZEFRBEGKL(ESR
REEGH]) EXVELET7 R8N G A M E A
RAIRBMINER RS HARESE
% K HR B 1 5 38 352 1R 50 B 70 5% 16 FT 15 9 &
AR R KA R - K BRIEIEES R
HERAARERAMERS ABWAT

Approximate
percentage* of
Number of  shareholding in

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest shares the Company
RA QB HIBEA
EEgE B Rt REOEE REBDEL”
Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li") Interest in controlled corporations 494,400,000 61.80%
FHREE(NEHREED XA E (long position)
(5 2E)
30,000,000 3.75%
(short position)
k&)
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael Interest in controlled corporation 53,760,000 6.72%
(“Mr. Yung") R A B RE (long position)
SEMrEE(SxEED (#FE)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (“Mr. Lee"”) Interest in controlled corporation 51,840,000 6.48%
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48 TK Group (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2013

(long position)
(4F2&)



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Note: The Company is held as to approximately 51.0%, 10.8%, 6.72% and 6.48%

by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix"), Lead Smart Development
Limited (“Lead Smart”), Cheer Union Development Ltd. (“Cheer
Development”) and Normal Times International Limited (“Normal Times”).
Eastern Mix is interested in 408,000,000 shares and has a short position in
30,000,000 shares of the Company. Eastern Mix is held as to 45.0%,
28.0% and 27.0% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, respectively. Lead
Smart is interested in 86,400,000 shares and is wholly-owned by Mr. Li.
Cheer Union is interested in 53,760,000 shares and is wholly-owned by
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A 1 2 K 730,000,000 % 7K 2 7] R
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BAERFTRMES LS FFH45.0% -
28.0% K& 27.0% ° & <8 86,400,000 fi%
B HIERESIEHETRIEEDE

HE A - B R 53,760,000 88 B 17 & HE
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51,840,000 i fi% 17 70 #E & # 72 3 £ 3F R
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Mr. Yung. Normal Times is interested in 51,840,000 shares and is wholly-
owned by Mr. Lee. As Mr. Li is interested in 45.0% of Eastern Mix, Mr. Li
is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Eastern
Mix under Part XV of the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided * B 5 HEAT R i R # A B XK
by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2013. R A]R2013F 1231 HE #7815
#A -

Approximate

percentage* of

shareholding

Capacity/ in the

Name of associated Nature of Number of associated

Name of Director corporation Interest shares corporation

PR E B Y

B REn B R RE

EERE HEEE AR HE RHEE Bkt

Mr. Li Eastern Mix Beneficial owner 22,500 45.0%
FHRESE SR EmEAA

Mr. Yung Eastern Mix Beneficial owner 14,000 28.0%
HhE &R EnEA A

Mr. Lee Eastern Mix Beneficial owner 13,500 27.0%
FRIBES L3 EnEA A

The percentage represents the number of shares interested divided by the * B 5 k75 B # IR 17 20H B 48 B O%
number of issued shares of the associated corporation as at 31 December R2013F 12431 H 895 F77 15 #
2013. A -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she was deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Share

As at 31 December 2013, so far as is known to the directors of the
Company, the following corporations had interests and short positions of 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company which were required
to be notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of part XV
of the SFO or which were required to be recorded in the register of
interest required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest
MR & 51 RmtE
Eastern Mix (Note 1) Benefiﬁial owner
SR (M) EmEA A
Eastern Mix (Note 1) BenefiEiaI owner
SR (KET) ExnEAA
Lead Smart (Note 2) Ben fiEiaI owner
28 (faE2) EnlEA A
Cheer Union (Note 3) BenefiEiaI owner
B (HfaE3) EnEBA
Normal Times (Note 4) Benefigial owner
B (A aE4) EmEA A
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(long position)
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30,000,000 3.75%
(short position)
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(long position)
(F &)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Notes:

1. Eastern Mix is owned by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee as to 45.0%, 28.0% and
27.0%, respectively. For the purpose of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Li is interested in
over one-third of the issued shares of Eastern Mix and is deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Eastern Mix.

2. Lead Smart is wholly-owned by Mr. Li. For the purpose of Part XV of the SFO, Mr.
Li is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Lead Smart.

3. Cheer Union is wholly-owned by Mr. Yung. For the purpose of Part XV of the
SFO, Mr. Yung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Cheer Union.

4. Normal Times is wholly-owned by Mr. Lee. For the purpose of Part XV of the SFO,
Mr. Lee is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Normal Times.

The percentage represents the number of shares involved divided by the number
of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person, other than
the directors of the Company whose interests and short position are set
out in section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had registered an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register of interests required to be
kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 29 November 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants (including employees, executives or
officers, directors including non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to the
long term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract
and retain high calibre employees. During the year, no share options were
granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme.

The Group has no share option outstanding as at 31 December 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of Listing (20
December 2013) and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
80,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and 9.68%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual report.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant or further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting. A grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Option). In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued, upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding), to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30 days
from the date of offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determined by the directors, save that such a period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options and subject to
the provisions for early termination as set out in the Share Option
Scheme. There is no requirement of a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options, which must be a date on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in securities; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Deed of Non-Competition

Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the “Covenantors”)
have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company (on
behalf of itself and the Group) dated 29 November 2013 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that their
respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in any business
in competition with the existing business activity of the Group. Relevant
information on the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors of their
compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that
they have fully complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December
2013. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed on the
confirmations from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed has
been complied with and has been effectively enforced.

Connected Transactions

The Group entered into the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions during the year. The Stock Exchange has granted to the
Company a conditional waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement requirement for the following transactions subject to (i)
the directors confirming that those transactions have been entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (i) the proposed annual
caps for those transactions are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction

amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2013:

TREINZFHHRRFTERXHN2013F 2

FELREERXZH

Actual Transaction

No Connected Transaction Connected Person Annual Cap Amount
ma BEXS BEAL FELR BERXSH
RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000 HK$'000
ARBTT FET ARBTT FHET
1 Processing Agreement RIS AR AR ENIEA 1,740 2,196 1,732 2,169
T % &40 (Operation Unit of
Jin Baoli Mold and Ironware of
Gongming, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen*) (“Jin Baoli”)
T & RYTAATRAFEENER
heEB2ERND
Lease agreement
HE W=
2 Hong Kong Tenancy TK Technology Holdings Limited 56 70 56 70
Agreement RIREEBERAR)
(“TK Technology Holdings")
ERMEERZ RIMBREEERAA
(BIRREE])
3 Shenzhen YuluPlantB () #rIZRBORINER AR 304 384 304 381
Lease Agreement (TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd.*)
("TK Plastics (Shenzhen)”)
R EEBEBNMEE MRIBBORI)BRAF
Ik (FFreTEB ORI )
4 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B (Il)  TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 147 186 147 184
Lease Agreement
RNEEBEBMNEE  #FEITZBRBORID
ik
5 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B (lll)  TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 89 112 89 111
Lease Agreement
ANEEBEBINEE  FEITZBRBORIID
ik
6  Shenzhen Tangjia Plant|  BCIRIECFINER AT 3,196 4,034 3,194 3,998
Lease Agreement (TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd.
("TK Technology (Shenzhen)”)
RYINERBEIEEHZE IR ORIDBR QA
(MTEIRHZ ORI D)
7 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Il TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,534 1,936 1,533 1,919
Lease Agreement
RINERBEIREHZ FLIEHE ORI
8 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Il TK Technology (Shenzhen) 790 997 789 988
Lease Agreement
RINBERBENEEHZE TR ORI
Subtotal for lease agreement 6,116 7,719 6,112 7,651

ME &t
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

On 8 August 2013, TK Mold (SZ) Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Jin Baoli
entered into a processing services sub-contracting framework
agreement (the “Processing Agreement”), pursuant to which Jin
Baoli agreed to provide processing services for TK Mold (Shenzhen)
in accordance with the terms on specifications, price, quantity,
delivery and payment to be separately agreed by the parties upon
TK Mold (Shenzhen) placing orders with Jin Baoli. The Processing
Agreement is for a period of two and a half years from 1 July 2013
to 31 December 2015.

Jin Baoli is owned by Z5+E (Mr. Li Ji Wan*), who is the nephew of
Mr. Li. According to the Listing Rules, Jin Baoli is an associate of Mr.
Li, and is thus a connected person of the Company.

The cap amount payable by us in respect of the Processing
Agreement for the year ended 2013 amounted to RMB1,740,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,196,000). The cap amount was
determined based on (i) previous transactions between the parties; (ii)
the then prevailing market price for the processing services at the
time of execution of the Processing Agreement; and (iii) the
estimated demand for the processing services by TK Mold
(Shenzhen).

A tenancy agreement dated 21 May 2013 and as supplemented by
a supplemental tenancy agreement dated 21 November 2013 (the
“Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK
Technology Holdings as landlord and our Company as tenant in
respect of the premises located at Workshop No. 19 on 9th Floor,
Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle Peak Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong
Premises”) with an area of approximately 77.67 square metres for a
term of two years and seven months commencing on 1 June 2013
and expiring on 31 December 2015 at a monthly rent of
HK$10,000. The property is used as the principal place of business
for our Group in Hong Kong. At any time during the term of the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, our Company may terminate the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement by giving not less than one
month’s prior written notice to the landlord or by paying one
month’s rent to the landlord.

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and
27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology
Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is
thus a connected person of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual rent
for the Hong Kong Premises for 2013 amounted to HK$70,000,
payable by our Company in advance on the first day of each
calendar month. The annual rent payable to TK Technology
Holdings was determined at after arm'’s length negotiation between
the parties to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement. The independent
property valuer of our Company has also confirmed that the terms
of the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable and
the rental payment under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
reflects the prevailing market rate.

The following lease agreements were entered into between TK
Plastics Shenzhen as landlord and BT &IFZLOFYINBR AT (TK
Precision Plastics (SZ) Limited*) (“TK Precision Plastics”) and {A &
B(RYNBRE AR (YD Mold (SZ) Limited*) (“YD Mold”) as tenants

BEEEHEWRSE 2013FF5 50
K F 7 A700008 T AARAIRF
FERAEBEHBASINMN BN FERIMK
EENFRNEEERERRTNS
ANEEEEET A RARNBYLYHE
HEMNAEERESHERE KR
BATEE REBSHEMEETH
HERMTIBITHE -

HRTIZBRYIDERFE)HERT
FRVEZ (RYDBER 2R ([RITHE
EBDEBRBEAECRIND BR QA
(TEREA]D (EREEAN) D RIFT L

respectively: THBE B
Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
1= i EHED] 1% B HEWHE FH A#
(RMB)
(AR#)
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B TK Plastics (Shenzhen) as 1 June 2013 and Mezzanine Level, Zone B on Level 1 June 2013 to 43,425
(I) Lease Agreement landlord and TK 21 November 2013 2 and Zone B on Level 3, Block 3, 31 May 2014
Precision Plastics as No. 2 Dexing Road, Yulu
tenant Community, Gongming
Sub-district Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
AYIE 2B = B() EOTERB ORI (E 2013F6 A 1H REURYIT LR E RBEE 2013566718
HEH= REF)EFITREE Kk2013F MEREELEBEBERK2E 20145
A (EREBEA) 11A218 $£3RE2EBRRE3EBRE 5AH31H
(F12)
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B (Il)  TK Plastics (Shenzhen)as 1 June 2013 and Zone C on Level 1, Block 3, No. 2 1 June 2013 to 20,966
Lease Agreement landlord and TK 21 November 2013 Dexing Road, Yulu Community, 31 May 2014
Precision Plastics as Gongming Sub-district Office,
tenant Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC
I E 2 B B HETEBORI) (fF 2013F6H1H RERYITLEAH R NAEE 2013F6A1H
HE = REF)ERTIRAE Kk2013F NERFTELBEAK2R F2014F
2B (fERETAA) 1MA21H FIRE1ECE 5A31H
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B (lll)  TK Plastics (Shenzhen) as 1 June 2013 and Zone C on Level 1, Block 2, No. 2 1 June 2013 to 12,672
Lease Agreement landlord and YD Mold 21 November 2013 Dexing Road, Yulu Community, 31 May 2014

as tenant

RAINEEBEBINEE HERITIZBORI)(fE 2013F6A1H
& BEI)EHERER K2013F
(tEREMA) 11A21H
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Gongming Sub-district Office,
Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC

RERIITTLBAHE ABREE 2013F6A1R
MEZETEULEEERK2E  F2014F
F2RFNECE 5A31H



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are entitled to renew the
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements by notifying the landlord
one month before the expiration of the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B
Lease Agreements and TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are
entitled to a right of first refusal in the renewal. Moreover, in the
event that the landlord intends to sell the subject properties during
the term of the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements, including
any renewal thereof, the landlord shall inform TK Precision Plastics
and YD Mold of the intended sale in writing and TK Precision
Plastics and YD Mold are entitled to a right of first refusal to
purchase, which is deemed to be waived if TK Precision Plastics and
YD Mold do not accept the offer within 30 days after receiving such
notice. TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are further entitled to
terminate the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements by giving
one month’'s notice to the landlord without cause. Mr. Li, Mr. Yung
and Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders of TK Plastics
(Shenzhen), undertake to use their best endeavour to procure TK
Plastics (Shenzhen) to fulfil its obligations under the Shenzhen Yulu
Plant B Lease Agreements.

TK Plastics (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to 45.0% by
Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to
the Listing Rules, TK Plastics (Shenzhen) is an associate of Mr. Li,
Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the
Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Plastics (Shenzhen) was determined
at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to the
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements. The independent
property valuer of our Company has also confirmed that the terms
of the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements (including the
rental payable thereunder) are fair and reasonable and the rental
payable under the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements reflects
the prevailing market rate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

The following lease agreements were entered into between TK
Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK

Precision Plastics as tenants respectively:

Agreement

1

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
| Lease Agreement
No. 1

F-RYNERBE
HEH#

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
| Lease Agreement
No. 2

EFRINERBE
ME =

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Il Lease Agreement

RIERBEIRE

1

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Il Lease Agreement

FYERBEIEE

i3

Parties to the
Agreement

Lk HED

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
as landlord and TK
Mold (Shenzhen) as
tenant

RIIR BRI (BB
XDERIRACK
Y (FERZEFEAN)

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
as landlord and TK
Mold (Shenzhen) as
tenant

ROTR BRI (ER
¥P)ERIKLACK
Y (FEREFAAN)

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
as landlord and TK
Precision Plastics as
tenant

RIIREOGRI) (R
XT)ERTIHEENE
2 (EREEAN)

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
as landlord and TK
Precision Plastics as
tenant

RIRBEORI) (ER
EX)ERIRAE
B (fEREBEA)

58 TK Group (Holdings) Limited ~Annual Report 2013

Date of Agreement

ELEE

1 June 2013 and
21 November 2013

2013F6 A1H K
201311 A21H

1 June 2013 and
21 November 2013

2013F6 A1H K
201311 A21H

1 June 2013 and
21 November 2013

2013F6 A1HA K
201311 A21H

1 June 2013 and

21 November 2013

2013F6 A1H K
2013411 A21H

RIBECRIDERFE)BRITER
BRI RRTHRAIEZL (1FREME

AN RIETSZ T O E e

Leased Property
HEWE

Workshops A, B & C, Phase 1 of
TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming
Sub-District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC

BRI LB # R A BT 8

BMERERLRFIIR K
ITXE(HEREA BRC
1R

Area No. 2, Workshop D, Phase 1
of TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming
Sub-district Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC

REDRIITTLA R B ABREE

PMERERLERTRR
ITxE(—H)BEDR2%

=]
i}

Workshop G, TK Technology Park,
Tangjia Community, Gongming
Sub-district Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen, the
PRC

REDRIIT LA E AR E

BEZHERIMRIE
B 5 G IR

Area No. 9, Workshop H, TK
Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming
Sub-district Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen, the
PRC

B R I K B T R N B B =

BREXRLERIMRIE
& B HAR 955 (&

Term

8

1 June 2013 to
31 December
2015

2013F6H1H
2015412 B
31H

1 June 2013 to
31 December
2015

2013F6A1H
Z2015%F
12A31H

1 June 2013 to
31 December
2015

2013F6 A 1H
£20154F
12A31H

1 June 2013 to
31 December
2015

201346 F1H
Z2015%F
12A31H

Monthly Rent
R#

(RMB)
(AR®)

394,885

61,431

219,046

112,772



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics are entitled to renew
the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by notifying the
landlord one month before the expiration of the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements, and TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision
Plastics are entitled to a right of first refusal in the renewal.
Moreover, in the event that the landlord intends to sell the subject
properties during the term of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements, including any renewal thereof, the landlord shall
inform TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics of the
intended sale in writing and TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision
Plastics are entitled to a right of first refusal to purchase, which is
deemed to be waived if TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision
Plastics do not accept the offer within 30 days after receiving such
notice. TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics are further
entitled to terminate the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
by giving one month’s notice to the landlord without cause. Mr. Li,
Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders of TK
Technology (Shenzhen), undertake to use their best endeavour to
procure TK Technology (Shenzhen) to fulfil its obligations under the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to 45.0%
by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to
the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is an associate of Mr.
Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the
Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to
the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements. The independent
property valuer of the Company has also confirmed that, having
taken into account of, among other things, the title defects of the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants, the terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants
Lease Agreements (including the rental payable thereunder) are fair
and reasonable and the rental payable under the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements reflects the prevailing market rate. Our
Directors consider that the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements have been entered into on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of our Group.

Pursuant to Rules 14A.25, 14A.26 and 14A.27 of the Listing Rules,
the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement,
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements and Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements (collectively the “Connected Lease
Agreements”) have been aggregated for the purposes of
determining the category of continuing connected transaction that
the Connected Lease Agreements shall fall into under the Listing
Rules.

RIBACRIDERRIIRETL A
PRINE R R = 12 S 9 & m AT — (&
HBRAZIBERZRFAERBREHER
& BERIEACRID) RRIIHEEE
PHEBEEHRNELE B WEE
BRAINERBEEHEHZRR(E
RzhanERNER ALERNY
X EZXIBENUEEPRASARIEA
CRINDRFTHRETEZRMELE
BRITIEACRYD RRITHRADE2 %
BEREBER HIRIRACRID R
ROTHAE 2N R EZBAELI0BER
VTEEXEY BRERRZELE
B - RIBEACRID RRIIHEEE
PRAEGETEET EABATALILE
RYNERBEEE RS mHAEEM
Bl RIIM ORI ZKRBRZF
RAEE HELERFTRIBELE A
BAIRAENERERITRECRYD
RERNEZBREEHEBEBITHEE
o

HIBECORY) BRZHRE LA
SHREMZTRBEESFHEERSS
45.0% ~ 28.0% N 27.0%H) A @l » 1B &
EWRA BITIRBORID AZTAR
E - FEERFREBEENBEA
T WMARRRINEEAL -

P BT R B CRYID &9 & 38 T3 &R
BRBEHERZNES TR FERR
BE - ARANBUMELEMLE
B(EFRBRE)RYERREEERIE
® NEERFNEXBEHEHZ
MGER(BREETITNENES) B
el BRINEZRBMEHERHZR
THRERNHEHER®RTHRITHE- HM
MEERS RIERBEHE RS
RAKEBEER -—REBEBREFZE
GASES S/ VAL

B4 £ 8 Bl E14A25 14A26 %
14702716 BAHEEHZ AIEE
WMEBHERZLFIERBERE
E(EEEERAERE)BEBTHOR
STAHTE LETHELRER S
BELMRANMBNFEVERSHE
Al o

FIKEERAERAT —O—=FF% 59



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have, for
the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its
business; (i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the terms of
the agreements governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditors have not qualified its report in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Related Party Transactions

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2013, it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers accounted for 34.0% of the Group's total sales and the
sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was approximately
11.1% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group's five largest suppliers were approximately 14.4% of the
Group's total purchases and the purchase attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier was approximately 5.6% of the Group’s total purchases.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

None of the directors or any of their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial interests in the
Group's top five suppliers or customers referred to above.

Rectification of non-compliance associated with the
procedures for the prevention and control of
occupational diseases and hazards

At the time of Listing, the Company had non-compliance in relation to
procedures for the prevention and control of occupational diseases and
hazards. Up to the date of this annual report, the Company had rectified
the non-compliance in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this annual report,
there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Professional Tax Advice

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are
advised to consult an expert.

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014

* denotes English translation of the name of Chinese company or entity, or vice
versa, and is provided for identification purposes only.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e
pwec

To the shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TK Group
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 64 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2013, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued])

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year end 31 December
BZE12A31MALEE

2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K &t FET FAT

Revenue PN 5 1,095,985
Cost of sales 3 & gl R 7 (724,287)
Gross profit EF 371,698
Other income H A YA 6 17,538
Other gains/(losses) — net Hubless (Ei18)— F58 6 6,446
Selling expenses HEMXZ 7 (55,505)
Administrative expenses THRAX 7 (142,737)
Operating profit mE R 197,440
Finance costs A& B A 10 (11,179)
Profit before income tax R At 18 B4 A1 % F 186,261
Income tax expense Fr 8 i f 11 (51,068)
Profit for the year attributable to AABEEAEMN

owners of the Company FRHEF 135,193
Other comprehensive income Hi 2wk

Item that may be reclassified to RABEE DR B

profit and loss: HE :

Currency translation differences M 5 =58 (47)
Total comprehensive income FRETEHWNREATE

for the year 135,146
Earnings per share for the year FRAERER

— basic and diluted (HK$ per share) — EARREE(FRET) 12 0.27

The notes on pages 71 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Dividends
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY

BALANCE SHEETS

Group Company
wE P NN
As at 31 December
®12H31H
2013 2012 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Kt i FET FAT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in a subsidiary RBRRZIEE 13 —
Land use rights + b {5 A 15 24,792
Property, plant and equipment ME - B MR E 16 253,713
Intangible assets EREE 17 4,164
Deferred income tax assets BEIEFTIS T A B 29 5,892
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIT A 23 745
Prepayments for property, plant Y BB MR
and equipment FONEENEN 3,796
Deposits for non-current EMBRITEENIZS
bank borrowings 2,611
295,713
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE8 19 150,204
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H th fE Y ZR I8 20 200,689
Amount due from a subsidiary P NEIE @ 34(d) —
Amounts due from related companies & Y& B8 B A &) 72018 34(c)(ii) 137,013
Available-for-sale financial assets AItHENSREE 22 24,664
Derivative financial instruments PTESMITA 23 798
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRSEEY 21 94,084
Pledged bank deposits EEBIRITER 24 47,712
655,164
Total assets WEE 950,877
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable ZX2QF#EE AELHER
to owners of the Company Ri#E
Share capital A% 2 25 —
Share premium AR 19 8% (B 25 —
Other reserves Hib 26 113,216
Retained earnings RE % 7
— Proposed final dividend —EBEAHRKRE 30 —
— Others —H A 163,153
Total equity B 276,369
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS (continued)

Group Company
rEH ¥ NN
As at 31 December
M®12H31H
2013 2012 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FHE T T&T FH&xT
LIABILITIES &81&
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Non-current bank borrowings ERBBEITEE 27 52,160
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHAE 29 17,677
69,837
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H b fE A~ 5118 28 341,802
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE <1 Bt BB A B ZRIA 34(e) =
Amounts due to related companies  J&{<f BE Bt & &) 2B 34(c)(iii) 40,654
Amounts due to Ultimate JEAS R AR AR R FRIB
Shareholders 34(c)(i) 22,057
Income tax liabilities FEHasE 38,013
Short-term bank borrowings RERITEE 27 128,809
Current portion of non-current FEMBIRITEE H BN ER
bank borrowings 287 27 33,336
604,671
Total liabilities HBEeE 674,508
Total equity and liabilities ERREEEHE 950,877
Net current assets REBEEFEH 50,493
Total assets less current liabilities A EERREBE G 346,206

The notes on pages 71 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2014 and were signed
on its behalf.

Li Pui Leung
ZHR
Director

EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Share Statutory Capital Exchange Retained
capital premium  reserves reserve reserve  earnings Total
BAE ROEE EERE BLARE ELARHFE KERAN gt
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR THTL TR THT TR THT TET

Balance at 1 January 2012 R2012F1 A1HNE % — — 22,214 — 78,475 97,089 197,778
Comprehensive income 2HEKE

Profit for the year F W A — — — — — 135,193 135,193

Currency translation differences EXES — — — — (47) = (47)
Total comprehensive income 2ERBEAE — — — — (47) 135,193 135,146
Contributions by and distributions REREERAZELNT

to owners of the Company EEALEREMRDIK

recognised directly in equity

Share issuance costs BR 1D B 47 K AR — = — (1,599) = = (1,599)

Dividends (9 = = = = —  (54,956)  (54,956)
Total contributions by and AARBEAALERER

distributions to owners of KB

the Company — — — (1,599) — (54,956) (56,555)
Transfer to statutory reserves BIAROETE R = = 14,173 = —  (14173) =
Total transactions with owners of BAQNFNEEARZEE

the Company — — 14,173 (1,599) — (69,129) (56,555)
Balance at 31 December 2012 N2012F12 A31 B W&k — — 36,387 (1,599) 78,428 163,153 276,369
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

Share Share Statutory Capital Exchange Retained
capital premium  reserves reserve reserve  earnings Total
BA ROEE EZERE BLARE ERARE KERA gt
Note HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ik TR THTL TR THT TR TET TET

Balance at 1 January 2013 R2013F1 A 1HH % — — 36,387 (1,599) 78,428 163,153 276,369
Comprehensive income 2HEKE
Profit for the year F W A — — — — — 121,348 121,348
Currency translation differences BN =5 — — — — 3,194 — 3,194
Total comprehensive income 2HEWEAE — — — — 3,194 121,348 124,542

Contributions by and distributions REZEERR 2

to owners of the Company AARBEAEALER

recognised directly in equity 15 5k

Share issuance B2 AT 25 20,009 230,000 — — — — 250,009

2013 Deemed Distribution 2013FHAED K 1.2.12 — —  (35,001) (174,522) (58,827) —  (268,350)

Share issuance costs B 15 317 Bk 2N — (6,268) — (8,138) — — (14,406)

Capitalisation of Indebtedness BHERL 25(c)(i) — — — 228,661 — — 228,661

Capitalisation Issue BB 25(d) 59,991 (59,991) — — — = —

Transfer of share issuance costs B B 17 Rk AN 3 — (9,737) — 9,737 — — —

Dividends % 8 30 — - - - —  (226,559) (226,559)
Total contributions by and FREAATDEEALE

distributions to owners REGDIKEE

of the Company for the year 80,000 154,004 (35,001) 55,738 (58,827) (226,559) (30,645)
Transfer to statutory reserves IR TE RS — — 6,532 = = (6,532) =
Transfer to reserve BREEGEE 25(e) —  (174,522) — 174,522 — — —
Transfer from reserve SRt 25(c)(ii) — 228,661 —  (228,661) — — —

Total transactions with owners HEZAAREEARS
of the Company wmag 80,000 208,143 (28,469) 1,599 (58,827) (233,091) (30,645)

Balance at 31 December 2013 201351283181
b3 80,000 208,143 7,918 — 22,795 51,410 370,266

’

The notes on pages 71 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated FETNEN9BEMWFAZEEHUBREN
financial statements. HRKER S o

68 TK Group (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2013



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MALEE

2013 2012
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Kt i FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REAKEZHNEESRE
Cash generated from operations REEENES 31(@a) 248,695
Interest received 2 HF & 2,189
Income tax paid BT FTIS (29,219)
Net cash generated from operating activities #£ & & &) FTE £ &Y
He 8 221,665
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E ¥ % = M & E (146,124)
Purchase of intangible assets EEELEE (1,448)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant BEEYE - BENMEREN
and equipment Fir 15 5818 31(b) 12,411
Repayments from related companies DR NGO 4,979
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets B E Al ft HEH L BB E (449,501)
Proceeds from available-for-sale financial AHEENSREE
assets Fr 13 5K 18 432,855
Net cash used in investing activities KEERHMARSFE (146,828)
Cash flows from financing activities REBETHNELSRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEE TS RIE 253,218
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITEE (284,866)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits R R 17 17 R 30,509
Increase in deposits for non-current FEREBITEEIRSIEM
bank borrowings (1,040)
Interest paid 21 F & (11,184)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BERERMDPERIE 25(c)(iii) —
Share issuance costs paid BT 5 TR AR —
Advances from Ultimate Shareholders K ERKRIE AR 24,750
Repayments to Ultimate Shareholders A & KRR B B R (2,723)
Repayments to related companies ElEE NG EE N (14,152)
Repayments from related companies KEBE ATRER =
Payments for acquisition of equity WEEAPHBRAER X
interests and Listing Business in ETEBMAR
the Reorganisation 1.2.81.2.11 =
Dividends to Ultimate Shareholders Y FEREBREARE 30 (54,956)
2013 Deemed Distribution to M i 4 AR R #2013 48
Ultimate Shareholders HIED IR 1.2.12 —
Net cash generated from/(used in) mMEEEBAEL(FTH)
financing activities ReFHE (60,444)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F 128318 ILEE

Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MALEE

2013 2012
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Kt i FET TFAT
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents e RIRSEEWIE N
SEEE 14,393
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHREMBEEED
of the year 75,857
Exchange losses on cash and cash RekReEEMER
equivalents &5 18 (71)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRESLKBESEZEY
the year 90,179
Analysis of balances of cash and e kBEeZEEMER
cash equivalents: FaR ik
Cash and cash on hand RITRFHES 94,084
Bank overdrafts RITEX (3,905)
90,179

The notes on pages 71 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated 71 Z 1598 W T A E 4 M EHRE W
financial statements. B E D o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Information and Group Reorganisation

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability.
The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing, sales,
subcontracting, fabrication and modification of molds and
plastic components in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") (the “Listing Business”). As at 31 December 2013, the
ultimate shareholders of the Group are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr.
Yung Kin Cheung Michael and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (the “Ultimate
Shareholders”), each holding an effective equity interest of
33.75%, 21% and 20.25% in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

As the Company was only incorporated on 28 March 2013,
there are no comparative figures for the Company’s balance
sheet as at 31 December 2012.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 25 March
2014.

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the completion
of the Reorganisation as described below, the Listing Business
was mainly conducted through TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd., TK
Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd., TK Mold (SZ) Limited, TK Plastics
Products (Suzhou) Limited, TK International (BVI) Limited, HL
Mold Limited and YD Mold (SZ) Limited which were the
subsidiaries of TK Group Limited and Shenzhen Dongbo Mold
Limited.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

1 General Information and Group Reorganisation
(Continued)

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange, the Group underwent a reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”), pursuant to which the Company became
the holding company of certain companies/operations
engaged in the Listing Business. The Reorganisation involved
the following:

1.2.1 () On 20 November 2012, TK Industrial Holdings
Limited (formerly known as TK Group Holdings
Limited) was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”) by Ultimate Shareholders.

(i)  On 7 December 2012, YD Trading (Hong Kong)
Limited, TK Mold (Hong Kong) Limited, TK Plastics
(Suzhou) Limited and TK Plastics (Hong Kong)
Limited were incorporated in Hong Kong as
wholly-owned subsidiaries of TK Industrial
Holdings Limited.

1.2.2 (i) On 7 December 2012, Eastern Mix Company
Limited (“Eastern Mix"”) was incorporated in the
BVI, in which Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin
Cheung Michael and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu each
holds equity interest of 45%, 28% and 27%,
respectively.

(i)~ On 20 February 2013, Normal Times International
Limited (“Normal Times”) was incorporated in the
BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

1 General Information and Group Reorganisation 1 —fERNEBEA @)
(Continued)

1.2.2 (Continued) 122 (#8)

(i)  On 12 March 2013, Cheer Union Development (i) M20134F3 H128
Ltd (“Cheer Union"”) was incorporated in the BVI BEEAR QA
and is wholly-owned by Mr. Yung Kin Cheung (TEBDERBREX
Michael. HEdMAZ B

EAXEEHRE -
(iv)  On 14 March 2013, Lead Smart Development (ivy M20134F3 H148 -
Limited (“Lead Smart”) was incorporated in the ZRAERABR A A
BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Li Pui Leung. TZEDERBE X
HEFMAKT B

TMREEZEHRE -
1.2.3 On 28 March 2013, the Company was incorporated in 1.2.3 ’R201343 828H ' AR A
the Cayman lIslands with authorised share capital of RRESHESFMKY  EE
HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 ordinary shares of fi& 48 &380,0008 7T © 2 B
HK$0.1 each, a total of 10,000 ordinary shares were 3,800,000 3% & B ™ H0.1 75
issued and nil paid as follows: TR E B G - BEITRM

% 38 5@ I A ££10,000/% -
HEHYOT

Number Equity
Shareholder of shares interest in %
ER
[ [ &vi S qE B 7 (%)
Eastern Mix =) 5,100 51.0
Lead Smart | 2,205 22.1
Cheer Union JicEiEa 1,372 13.7
Normal Times i B 1,323 13.2
10,000 100.0
1.24 On 1 March 2013, TK Precision Plastics (SZ) Limited was 124 RITR(FE)BR A A
incorporated in the PRC as a wholly-owned subsidiary 2 ENB QAR RIS
of TK Plastics (Hong Kong) Limited. gEZORYD BER A AR
20133 818 7 & &F i

FX3Z o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

1

General Information and Group Reorganisation
(Continued)

1.25

1.2.6

On 1 April 2013, TK Plastics (Suzhou) Limited acquired
the entire equity interest in TK Plastics Products (Suzhou)
Limited from TK Plastics Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of TK Group Limited, for a
consideration of RMB10,701,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$13,433,000), which was based on a
valuation as at 31 December 2012 conducted by an
independent valuer. The consideration was subsequently
settled through a novation and capitalisation
arrangement under which the consideration payable by
TK Plastics (Suzhou) Limited was novated to the
Company and was capitalised as at 30 June 2013 by
allotment and issue of a total of 10,000 ordinary shares
of the Company to Eastern Mix, Lead Smart, Cheer
Union and Normal Times, pursuant to a supplemental
agreement entered into on 30 June 2013. TK Plastics
Products (Suzhou) Limited became an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 17 April 2013, the Company acquired the entire
equity interest in TK Industrial Holdings Limited from
Ultimate Shareholders by crediting the existing 10,000
nil paid shares in issue as fully paid and issuing a total
of 10,000 ordinary shares as follows:

1

—mRERTEBEZ A @)

1.2.5

M2013FE4818  ®IL*E
B (ERM)BR AR MET
¥ B A R A 7 (TK Group
Limited ¥ 2 2 B M B 2
ROWBERR IR
m (ER M) B BR A 256
Az REAEARK
10,701,000T( 48 & B &
13,433,0007 7T ) * Ty 1R &
% N B RD R 2012412 B
BNEMEEFEMmMSE -
ZREEEBBAEZERE
L BEZ - Hk - BT
EB (B N) BR QA ER
REEEEZAQR) TR
201346 B30 BB #2013
6 HA308 5] MM T HE
MER - ZE  EHPBR#EKF
& H g 8 K %17 10,000 % 4%
RRE BT E AR - BT
BRER(EMN) AR A A

MAEARARHNEEZEW
BAF -
M2013FE4 8178 » KR T

iR E #17H A 10,0000%
REABRAKRHD ARINIED
BRI E AT A 10,0008 F
BRBEOEREREWKE
TK Industrial Holdings Limited

FER AR FIEEHY A

S s
Number
Shareholder of shares
B =R B 17 8 B
Eastern Mix &£ & 8,500
Lead Smart  Z 4B 675
Cheer Union 8 [ 420
Normal Times i B 405
10,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

1 General Information and Group Reorganisation
(Continued)

1.2.7

1.2.8

On 17 April 2013, TK Mold (Hong Kong) Limited
acquired the entire equity interest in TK Mold (S2)
Limited from TK Mold Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of TK Group Limited, for a
consideration of RMB84,089,400 (equivalent to
approximately HK$106,448,000), which was based on a
valuation as at 31 December 2012 conducted by an
independent valuer. The consideration was subsequently
settled through a novation and capitalisation
arrangement under which the consideration payable by
TK Mold (Hong Kong) Limited was novated to the
Company and was capitalised as at 30 June 2013 by
allotment and issue of a total of 10,000 ordinary shares
of the Company to Eastern Mix, Lead Smart, Cheer
Union and Normal Times, pursuant to a supplemental
agreement entered into on 30 June 2013. TK Mold (S2)
Limited became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

On 25 April 2013, YD Trading (Hong Kong) Limited
acquired the entire equity interest in YD Mold (S2)
Limited from TK Industrial Ltd., a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of TK Group Limited, for a cash consideration
of RMB8,432,900 (equivalent to approximately
HK$10,594,000), which was based on a valuation as at
31 December 2012 conducted by an independent
valuer and has been settled in cash. YD Mold (S2)
Limited became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

1 —RERNTNEBEZA @

1.2.7

RISE(ZR) ARAR

MN2013FE4 178 RTH#E A
(&%) BR2QaE BTK Group
Limited ) I = 2 A W B 2
RIRIEABR AR KE
RIBACORY) BRA A
MmeEBlE REAAR
#:84,089,400 7T ( 18 & M %Y
106,448,000 7T ) * Jh IR 1%
H E2012F12A318 B
HEMETHEEETE ° %
REBERAETEERER
{EZBEZ T FBlt  ®THE
BE(EB)ERAEEMR
BEEEZAQNE  TER
201346 530 BB #2013
%6 A30H 5] M A 7T 1 &
MER  ZE - B RER
& H g 8 K %17 10,000 % 4%
RRE BT E AR - BT
HECEI) BRRRKAB
ARAmEEEZENRB A

=

A

M2013 48258 H &
BH5(BE)ERAFATK
Group Limited ) & # & & [ff
B A A TK Industrial Ltd. Ug B
HEEECRERY) BBR A A
WEERE ReREAA
R 8,432,900 (18 & 7 4
10,594,0007% 7T ) - &% X B
Ty iR % 72012412 A31H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

1

General Information and Group Reorganisation
(Continued)

1.29 On 31

o

May 2013, TK Industrial Holdings Limited
acquired the entire equity interest of TK International (BVI)
Limited from TK Industrial Ltd., for a consideration of
HK$10,068,431, which was based on a valuation as at
30 April 2013 conducted by an independent valuer. The
consideration was subsequently settled through a
novation and capitalisation arrangement under which
the consideration payable by TK Industrial Holdings
Limited was novated to the Company and was
capitalised as at 30 June 2013 by allotment and issue of
a total of 10,000 ordinary shares of the Company to
Eastern Mix, Lead Smart, Cheer Union and Normal
Times, pursuant to a supplemental agreement entered
into on 30 June 2013. TK International (BVI) Limited
became an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Shenzhen Dongbo Mold Limited, HL Mold Limited, TK
Plastics Limited, TK Mold Limited, TK Plastics (Shenzhen)
Ltd. and TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. were
companies controlled by Ultimate Shareholders, carried
out the Listing Business as well as other businesses
which were not strategically complementary to the
Group’s operations and/or dissimilar with the Listing
Business (the “Excluded Business”).
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M 201345 H31HTK
Industrial Holdings Limited
B TK Industrial Ltd. ¢ 88 TK
International (BVI) Limited 89 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

1 General Information and Group Reorganisation 1 —fERNEBEA @)
(Continued)

2N RBEBEEH RYUMERBEER

1.2.11Pursuant to the Reorganisation, Shenzhen Dongbo

Mold Limited, HL Mold Limited, TK Plastics Limited and
TK Mold Limited ceased their Listing Business before
June 2013 while TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd. and TK
Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. (together with Shenzhen
Dongbo Mold Limited, HL Mold Limited, TK Plastics
Limited and TK Mold Limited (the *“Predecessor
Subsidiaries”) transferred their Listing Business
respectively to TK Precision Plastics (SZ) Limited and TK
Mold (SZ) Limited, subsidiaries of the Group, for an
aggregate cash consideration of RMB215,560,138
(equivalent to approximately HK$270,600,000).
Accordingly, the equity interests in the Predecessor
Subsidiaries were not transferred to the Group upon the
completion of Reorganisation. Up to 31 December
2013, such consideration has been fully paid by the
Group.

RISE(ZR) ARAR

ERAF - BAEAFRA
Al-RIBBERAAR
ROIHEAEBRA A K213
FeAZHMERIEHE FhE
% mEEIEBCEI)A
RAEREITRECRY)
ERARCGERZFEYTRE
BEBRAR  HAEAES
[RAR - RTIBRBRERADA
FEIEABR AR
GWB AR HE W
G avaml X e il NS M= o ]
B A A RIT R AEBOR
J)BERRARRERITEA
CRINEBMRAF  RENE
& H* A5 AR #215,560,138
7T (#8 & 7 49270,600,000 7%
TT) e A RAETH KB A
AIM B AN R EE TR
BIWREETAEE -HE
2013F 128318 K% H
BRI TBEBANRE-

—OoO—=FF®R 77



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

—mRERTEBEZ A @)

1 General Information and Group Reorganisation 1
(Continued)

1212 REHATHKBE  RIEEAR

1.2.12 As at the completion date of Reorganisation, assets and

liabilities of these Predecessor Subsidiaries not
transferred to the Group pursuant to the Reorganisation
were accounted for as a deemed distribution to
Ultimate Shareholders (“2013 Deemed Distribution”).
Details of these assets and liabilities which were not

transferred to the Group are as follows:

TAHREZTFTAEENZSE
MEMBATNEERE
ECEARRKKRENE
E ok A BR (120134 5% 1
DE]) e WAREZE T AEE
NZEEERBENFRB
R

As at

31 May 2013

20135

5A31H

HK$'000

FBT

Cash, cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits R & RIHEZEY &

EHEARITER 83,904

Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 22) At HENSmE E (KiF22) 17,575
Derivative financial instruments, net ESmIE  FE 72
Land use rights (Note 15) T AR (A7 et 15) 24,932
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) Y BB R (Mt 16) 105,451
Deferred income tax assets (Note 29) EIEFTIS BB B (K7 7429) 856
Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 29) BEMBHRARE(WiF29) (16,868)
Bank borrowings RITEE (214,147)
Amounts due from related companies & L [ B 1 R) FNIR 326,984
Receivables and payables — net JE W K% JE 9 3R — F R (60,409)
Net assets BEFR 268,350
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of derivative
financial instruments and available-for-sale financial assets
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a] Change in accounting policy

“Consolidated income statement” and
“Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income”, which were presented separately in
these consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012, are combined
into one “Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income” for presentation in the
consolidated financial statements. This change for
simplicity and conciseness does not have any
impact on the results, financial position and cash
flows of the Company and the Group for the
current and previous years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following standards have been adopted by
the Group for the year:

Amendment to HKAS 1, “Financial statement
presentation” regarding other comprehensive
income. The main change to the Group resulting
from these amendments is a requirement for
entities to group items presented in “other
comprehensive income” on the basis of whether
they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The
adoption of this amended standard does not have
significant impact to the Group.

Amendment to HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments:
Disclosures”, on asset and liability offseting. The
amendments require new disclosure requirements
which focus on quantitative information about
recognised financial instruments that are offset in
the statement of financial position, as well as
those recognised financial instruments that are
subject to master netting or similar arrangements
irrespective of whether they are offset. The
adoption of this amended standard does not have
significant impact to the Group.

HKFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements”
builds on existing principles by identifying the
concept of control as the determining factor in
whether an entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The adoption of this newly effective
standard does not have significant impact to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

EEKE u'|'E5("‘F’TE%t(...s

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2118 5 R K R 8 & &)
[COntinUEd] (m?)
(b) New and amended standards adopted by the (b) AEEH LR BB AT R

Group [Continued]

HKFRS 11, “Joint arrangements” focuses on the
rights and obligations of the parties to the
arrangement rather than its legal form. There are
two types of joint arrangements: joint operations
and joint ventures. Joint operations arise where
the investors have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of an arrangement. A
joint operator accounts for its share of the assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint ventures
arise where the investors have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement; joint ventures are
accounted for under the equity method.
Proportional consolidation of joint arrangements
is no longer permitted. The adoption of this newly
effective standard does not have significant
impact to the Group.

HKFRS 12, “Disclosures of interests in other
entities” includes the disclosure requirements for
all forms of interests in other entities, including
joint arrangements, associates, structured entities
and other off balance sheet vehicles. The adoption
of this newly effective standard does not have
significant impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EHFHRIBZ@

(Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 21185t R R KR & & #)
(Continued) (#&)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the (b) AEEH LR BB AT R

Group [Continued]

HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”, aims to
improve consistency and reduce complexity by
providing a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across International
Financial Reporting Standards. The requirements
do not extend the use of fair value accounting but
provide guidance on how it should be applied
where its use is already required or permitted by
other standards within HKFRSs. The adoption of
this newly effective standard does not have
significant impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EFHRIBZ@

(Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2118 5 R K R 8 & &)

(Continued) (&)

[c)] New and amended standards have been [c] #75T R&EE]ERZ
issued but are not effective and have not E 8B 5 Rk £ 3
been early adopted: IR IR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
REstiArBa%
F2BRAR

HKAS 32 (amendments) Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

TRIA: 23 —HEeMEE
kEma’E

Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

S FEEN A W E S REHEE

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
(amendments) and transition disclosures

BAMBRELAFIRLE S BAMBRELRFEI%R 2 &G
B 2ERFE 75 (1BF]) AW A REERE

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities
HKAS 27 (amendments)

BAVBRELEDE105%
BAAVBHRELNE 1257 R
BB HEAE275% (1BF])

1 January 2014

BB EREI2H (BT 201451 A1 H

HKAS 36 (amendments) 1 January 2014

FBGRTERIZE 365 (BF]) 201451 A1 H

1 January 2015
201541 H1H
1 January 2014

REERE

2014F1H1H

HKFRS 9

BEVBHRELAEIR

HK (IFRIC) Int.- 21

TR (BRYHERERE

ZEg)-2EBE2R
HKAS 39 (amendment)

BB ERE 395 (1EF])

Financial instruments
E@MTE
Levies

=8

Novation of derivatives

ITETEZER

The Group did not early adopt any of these new

or revised standards,

amendments and

interpretation to existing standards. Management
is currently assessing the financial impact of these
revisions to the Group’s financial position and

performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(a] Business combinations

Except for the Reorganisation, the Group applies
the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(b

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Merger accounting for Reorganisation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities
or businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are combined using the existing
carrying amounts from the controlling parties’
perspective. No amount is recognised for goodwill
or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net fair value
of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EFHRIBZ@
(Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued) 2216 HEEE (@
[c] Merger accounting for Reorganisation [c)] FJHONGHZEE
(Continued)] (&
The consolidated statement of comprehensive EeEKkFIRBIE
income includes the results of each of the EEHEBIEKE
combining entities or businesses from the earliest R 2B E S
date presented or since the date when the HEBIEBKERX
combining entities or businesses first came under [ 12 il 42 HA FE) (AR
the common control, whichever is shorter, RERE)CEE M
regardless of the date of the common control e R 26 S 0B
combination. Hf o
The comparative amounts in the consolidated A OF B B TR R A B B
financial statements are presented as if the SRERMINE S
entities or businesses had been combined at the BEREAMEERAE
previous balance sheet date or when they first REHIEARAXHEA
came under common control, whichever is T H R EE (AR &
shorter. RE)EHBRET -
A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by ZEEBEREAS —®
those entities. All intra-group transactions, S BEKR-FTESR
balances and unrealised gains on transactions ANRBIRHNR S &
between combining entities or businesses are BRAEHERBIER
eliminated on consolidation. ZERZHRER K
mINE DR o
2.2.2Separate financial statements 2228 MR %
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less RHE A A 8% & DA AR
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of WRESER - KABFERE
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for EEREEER -WBARE
by the company on the basis of dividend received and BHARARE KR EK
receivable. g B E AT AR -
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is EWIRHMBAR 2RE
required upon receiving a dividend from these 2B BER - BB EBEH B
investments if the dividend exceeds the total ARAEERKREHHEZ 2
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period MKRFBEE RNEBLY
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the BHRER2EHERTDERER
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds WIREREESHE(BER
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial B)EAHYBRRZER
statements of the investee’s net assets including B BINAEREMEIREE
goodwill. TR ERIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors who makes strategic decisions.

(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). Renminbi (“RMB")
is the functional currency of principal operating
subsidiaries of the Group. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
the presentation and functional currency of the
Company.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within “other gains/(losses)
— net”.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within  “finance income or cost”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within “other gains/(losses) — net”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(ii)

(iif)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transaction); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in
the Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in
associates or jointly controlled entities that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated currency
translation differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Land use rights are up-front payments to acquire long-term
interests in the usage of land. They are stated at cost and
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the remaining period of the lease on a straight-
line basis, net of any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EFHRIBZ@
(Continued)

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment on
which construction work has not been completed and stated
at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction expenditure
incurred, interest and other direct costs attributable to the
development. Depreciation is not provided on construction in
progress until the related asset is completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

g 204

Leasehold improvements

FENE BELRRBHRESL
AR E OB E BRI - B
ERABEKBEZEREERE
HZRx e

ERIRERETRINRTK
% BB RRE BRERAT
R-KABRMEENBERZ
ERAX MERBEEREREBH
MEMEEKA - EF TR
RITE BEZHBEERREN
BmEMALE

REEERE AR RELHERN
B ARERARNEERIER KA
RERSEFER  RRKAT &5
ABERAEXERS —HEBEL
EEWMBE) -EERHMBO 2K
EERBUSHER - FTA H M4 E
Ko 4 o8 B O E AR PR 2 2 B BREA P
AREH2E KSR AR -

ME - BENMKBIWEREMG
AERFHUNEREFEERED
REHREFEDT

Over 5 years or the remaining term of the relevant lease,

whichever is shorter

HEMEEE BBSFHRIRABBAORAFR(MEFRBREE)
Plant and machinery 5-10 years

TR B= Kot 25 5Z104

Furniture, fixtures and computer equipment 3-5 years

RE KENREBHERE 3E5F

Motor vehicles 5 years

T 54
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EHFHRIBZ@
(Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within  “Other gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Acquired software licences are capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

Research expenditures is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to
the design and testing of new and improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are
met:

o it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use;

o management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

o there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

. adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EFHRIBZ@

(Continued)

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development cost previously recognised as an expense is not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. Capitalised
development costs are recorded as intangible assets and
amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units), which are not larger than the operating segments
under HKFRS 8. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purposes for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

(a)

(b

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short-
term. Derivatives are categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
The Group’s derivative instruments do not qualify
for hedge accounting, and are accounted for at
fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of the Group's derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, these are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables comprise deposits for non-
current bank borrowings, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related companies,
pledged bank deposits and cash and bank
balances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EFHRIBZ@
(Continued)

2.10.1 Classification (Continued) 2.10.1 D48 (&)

[c] Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.

2.10.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest income on available-
for-sale financial assets is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or Group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2 FE2ESHERBE@m

(a)

RISE(ZR) ARAR

CABESE PN IR A BR BV & &
)

BB R e FE WK TR AR Bl
EOERERNIREBEEER
HELAZTHEERER
MEFHEMMGARERES
mE (T EEmRELH R
KERABR)NBEEMRE D
ZHRAE -BEREEST
HUR - e IR 2 B AE S 6
PHMERER - HEER
MESFBHNE - ARG
EREEENTREIRR
REGHEENENER
ME-EEREEAG K&
EAl A BB TS ER
BTAMAAEFERE-

—~

fil B EEIRBEN TR
R A - it THR A A BB
WERERBREREENS
(Bl an & 7 A 815 A R A
B E)BE  AELA
ERRINREBSEITES
PrEmEmlRERERE -

—O—=FF® 97



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for
sale increases and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads based on normal operating
capacity. It excluded borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EFHRIBZ@
(Continued)

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold and service provided in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investment with original
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. In the
consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits held by the bank in
a segregated account as security for borrowings from the
bank. Such pledged bank deposits will be released when the
Group repays the related bank borrowings.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EHFHRIBZ@

(Continued)

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EFHRIBZ@
(Continued)

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred H A B9 5618 B 2 B 1E B B RRE T
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of ME-HEREGHEZAEMEERT
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to R EEAEMEERENE
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in ERE=TERNIEBEEBBEOH
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other BRI EBR T RIS
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. AREMEEE S EERNER
(a) Currentincome tax (a) ROEARTIS MR
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis BNEER X ERBARA
of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the ARENRBRARKEE RE
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company ERRBTBRAHBERRE
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable EBBERHEEMHES
income. Management periodically evaluates positions FE®BR®H BB E G G
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which & o EI1PE @ B RS E
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It %12 PT AR PR MY 18 L B AT
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of BB EROMRNR - TEFEH
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. BRTIRIBETEARER BB

B S B B SRRRE 1B o

(b) Deferred income tax (b) EEFTISMR

Inside basis differences A 1F 2= £2

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability BEEMEMANBAGEER
method, on temporary differences arising between the REENMBENTHERSE
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying ENEBBEEMBEHREANE
amounts in the financial statements. However, the HEMNEZBEmMELEN TR
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from MER R BELEFE
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction HREER S (TEEXK
other than a business combination that at the time of A REEESE BN
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable THRR MERXRZIBETTZE
profit/loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax S ERRERTERE
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially BTN VERD BR o 1B FE T 15 4 B
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to AEEEAGBXRBAE®E
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is MR ELE LB BEH TEAR
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. BN ELEMEHEEER

HELEFMEREELEE R
R & AR R (KA

Bil) & 5 o
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the EEMSEHREEZERRA
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will B8 B R 2R E =R B FE Bt
be available against which the temporary differences M AT R E R AR
can be utilised. R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FE2EHFHRIBZ@
(Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued) (b) IEEPTISMR (&)
Outside basis differences INEEE
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary EEFEREWE R RIR
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except EELAMNERUEZEME
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary 15 MEfie AN 5 B AT LA
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable BMEEZEMBORRE mEy
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the REZEAAERBRR
foreseeable future. A ge SR uE [ Bl BR AP o

(c) Offsetting (c) #8E
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset EAETERAHITRE KA
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset B BEEENANBHBEA
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when B BREEMBHEE
the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to MaEwkmR— 5K #%
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on P ERTEBATAE
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities AP ERBEREEMUFE
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a ERGEEMERAERE 8
net basis. AKELEMEMEERS

REMREH -

Pension obligations RIMEEE

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the ARERKFERAEBERABLE
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The BYHEEHEKOEBIREFTE -
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further WERESCYETHEERMAE
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay BEEX NN RBABENES
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the R - & B JF O F Sk
current and prior periods. EEEZFEME—THERR-
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions MATHREmMS  KEB L
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans MEB AL ARBEEEARNK
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group SREBFTEI TG 540 E
has no further payment obligations once the contributions FEMEGER - NE B E X Ttk 1&
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee B et — P RRE A - AR E
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are HRERAREERAFAX - W&
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a BRESERRIRRERELIRT
reduction in the future payments is available. WA RNERAIERR/EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 T2 EFHHRIB2w@
(Continued)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to
be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to sale
have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Mold modification income
Revenue from mold modification services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

(c) Interestincome
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

2

3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved.

Financial Risk Management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Risk management is carried out by the senior
management of the Group and approved by the Board of
Directors.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, and is exposed
to foreign currency risks arising from various currency
exposures, mainly with respect to HK$, US dollar (“USD")
and Euro (“EUR"). Exchange rate fluctuations and
market trends have always been the concern of the
Group. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. The conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities

at the respective balance sheet dates are as follows:

B ¥ R RS IR @)

N BEE [l B (78)
REEEREXRAN UK
BKEEMBEBENETE
BNEREESHSWT

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT

Assets BE
HK$ BT 23,808
usD ETT 185,276
EUR B 14,081
Total 48 =t 223,165

Liabilities e &
HK$ T 127,423
usD ETT 21,716
EUR B 7T 1,047
Total 4t 150,186

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the
relevant foreign currencies, with all other variable held
constant, the profit before income tax would have
increased/(decreased) as follows:

HK$
usb
EUR

2013

i N W X B @I T
B/ fE5%  MmAAHMm
BERETE - AIBFEH
Al g R3S o0, CRl 2) 1558 28
T

2012

(Decrease)/increase on profit
before income tax if
exchanges rates change by
THERSEBMT  BRATE
BAR R Ot 2), /18 hn

+5% -5%

HK$'000 HK$’000

TERT FERT
BT
ETT
BT

(Decrease)/increase on profit
before income tax if
exchanges rates change by
WEZBB T - B AT G
4 A s A ORt 2>), /38 AN

+5% -5%
HK$°000 HK$'000
TAET TAET
5,181 (5,181)
(8,178) 8,178
(652) 652
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

3

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b)

(c)

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
or commodity price risk. Also, the Group has not
entered into any long term contracts with the suppliers.
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials are usually
passed on to customers.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash
and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and trade
and other receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
deposits, the management manages the credit risk by
placing all the bank deposits in state-owned financial
institutions or reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions.

To manage the credit risk in respect of trade and other
receivables, the Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition and does
not require collateral from the debtors on the
outstanding balances. Based on the expected
recoverability and timing for collection of the
outstanding balances, the Group maintains an
allowance for doubtful accounts and actual losses
incurred have been within management’s expectations.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as approximately 23.05%
(2012: 48.8%) of the total trade receivable that were
due from the Group's five largest customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances. The Group’s liquidity
risk is further mitigated through the availability of
financing through its own cash resources and the
availability of banking facilities to meet its financial
commitments. In the opinion of the directors, the Group
does not have any significant liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group'’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows including
interest elements computed using contractual rates, or
if floating based on rates at the year-end date.

3 HMBERKRER @

(d)

/)IL%)]%@HBQ
BEENRBDECRERKEE
BREEERARE € LRT
EH -AEENRBEZE
sE— ST HEBRHABAERS
BREFHEAE U LE
BERITELE DA w2 B
EmMEAER EERE
AEBVEFEMBERD
B R -

TEROREBEERMEBEXRA
=4 R EH A R
fa - 12 48 A 2 HR 4 Il 3 AT AR
SESRAE - RAKEN
@%ﬁﬁéﬁ*ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁi}ﬁ
%’@%@Eﬁ M RETE
B 718 jﬂlﬁ%/?@]
E'JTE¢ EE’Jttﬂ-u g

On 3 months 3 months Over
demand orless to 1year 1 year Total
=@A =@A
RER HUT ZE—-F —Filt #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TExT THEx TERT THER THER
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12A831H
Bank borrowings RITEE
Trade and other payables & 5 & H {th & (< 318
(excluding non-financial (GEra &R
liabilities)
Amounts due to related & Bi B A 7] ZE
companies
Total BEr
FIEBE(ER)ERAT —O0—=FF£®107



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HIKREKREIE @
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) WENETER (@)
On 3 months 3 months Over
demand orless to 1 year 1 year Total
=1@A =& H
BRER AT ZE=E—F —FMNE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFTHExX TFTHExT FTET TFAET
At 31 December 2012 7A2012%612 8318
Bank borrowings RITEE — 66,443 100,245 58,387 225,075
Trade and other payables & 5 K £ b & i 2 1B
(excluding non-financial GEE BB ERIN
liabilities) 44,268 121,000 — — 165,268
Amounts due to JE A S AR B R FIE
Ultimate Shareholders 22,057 — — — 22,057
Amounts due to related JE A B B A R 3R
companies 40,654 — — — 40,654
Total 4Rt 106,979 187,443 100,245 58,387 453,054
(e) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk le) IRERBN L EMNX

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Bank
borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group currently has not used any
interest rate swap arrangements but will consider
hedging interest rate risk should the needs arise. Should
interest rate for variable rate borrowings had been 1%
higher/lower for the year ended 31 December 2013
with all other variables held at constant, the Group’s
profit before tax would have been lower/higher by
HK$1,542,000 (2012: HK$2,051,000).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, changes in interest
rates within an expected range had no material impact
on the interest income of pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Financial Risk Management (continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity.

B ¥ R RS IR @)

AEEEREABENTEZARE
RERAEEGREEZE LMA
P SR A2 fH (o] e 3 A L A 45 B 3R
TS AREFRHENEARR
B ARAE B AR o

REFLRABEARE  AEH
FERHRBIXNTHRRORE 2
B BOHRIHKEEEARE
(EEr

AEBEREEABLRNEE
RENR o LR THREE B IA
RSB E -

25
o

The gearing ratio is as follows: EEABBRLENMT :
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’'000
THERT FHET
Total borrowings BERE 214,305
Total equity T HA R 276,369
Gearing ratio (%) BEBELE(%) 78%

Gearing ratio has decreased to 46% as at 31 December 2013,
which is mainly due to an increase in equity resulted from the
issue of new shares to the public less share issuance costs
(amounting to HK$235,594,000), profit for the year (amounting
to HK$121,348,000), Capitalisation of Indebtedness (amounting
to HK$228,661,000) (Note 25(c)(ii), less 2013 Deemed
Distribution (amounting to HK$268,350,000) (Note 1.2.12)
and interim dividends paid (amounting to HK$226,559,000)
(Note 30) during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

3
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Financial Risk Management (continued) 3

The fair values of current financial assets, including cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and amounts
due from related companies, as well as current financial
liabilities including trade and other payables, current
borrowings and amounts due to related companies
approximate their carrying amounts due to their short
maturities as at 31 December 2013. The following table
presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2012.

B ¥ R RS IR @)

RREEE®RE  R2013F12A8
3R mEeMEAE(BERS
MESEEBY BHREMER
RIE - EUREIE A R FIE) A K
Rt MAE(BEESREM
JE5F 3RI8 ~ B EA S 3R K JE A R g

ERE - TREVARERERK2012
FNRANBERAABEFENE
ERAE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E FE2fE $E3E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT TET T&T FET
Recurring fair value REEAARETE
measurements
Assets BE
Derivative financial TESmM T A
instruments — 1,543 — 1,543
Available-for-sale financial At HEMN L MEE
assets — 24,664 — 24,664

The table above analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by the level of inputs to valuation techniques. The
inputs to valuation techniques are categorised into three
levels within a fair value hierarchy, as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived

from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

(level 3).

There were no financial assets or liabilities measured at fair

value at 31 December 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives of its property, plant and equipment and consequently
the related depreciation charges. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group makes allowance for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade and
other receivables with reference to the extent and duration
that the amount will be recovered. Allowance is applied
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables and the impairment charge in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

In determining the amount of allowance required for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories, the Group would evaluate
ageing analysis of inventories and compare the carrying
amount of inventories to their respective net realisable value.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in determining
such allowances. If conditions which have impact on the net
realisable value of inventories deteriorate, additional
allowances may be required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 4L E9IR S 5HEEH K HE @

(Continued)

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision EETMERANBEEREELSE
for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations KB - EHBBEBBRES £
for which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the BERX S RFEFRYEEBREE
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of BERKMEMEA - WELER
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially REFTEREERYIERE R REE
recorded, such differences will impact the current and Eff=ZR A= gegyEE
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in 7E i I8 2 R A9 BN BA K2 IR AE BT 15 F
which such determination is made. BENRBE-
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences WEEEREBAKEHBERE
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to R A LA S R =R I
be probable that future taxable profit will be available against e AEREEE TEREE
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be RBEEBENECHIELEE - &
recognised. The outcome of their actual recognition may be RERER S S B TE -
different.
5 Segment Information 5 NIPER
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the DB RN REEWRBRTEANEEH
executive directors of the Group. The executive directors review the TEE - NTEETEBEHAEBH AL
Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance and HENTERBEEDEER  TiIRE
allocate resources and have determined the operating segments AR ER BB AR ABREETL
based on the internal reports that are used to make strategic ENHE - PITEETEREASEEXELHN
decisions. The executive directors considered the nature of the HEYEEAEBAMMERFTE DS
Group's business and determined that the Group has two R ()R B B E R (i) BB AR (R o

reportable segments as follows: (i) mold fabrication and (ii) plastic
components manufacturing.

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating HITEZREBES D BAOWA KEFFE
segments based on their revenue and gross profit and do not assess HMEEDIBHRER  BRELED I
the assets and liabilities of the operating segments. MEEKBEBEETMG-
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5 Segment Information (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

The following table presents information on revenue of the
Group by geographical segments for the year.

5

NEBE R @)

TREFNREBRERIZILES
B D YA BB -

Revenue from external customers IREFWA
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
PRC M 423,591
USA =35 108,933
South East Asia and Hong Kong REDRMES 269,276
Japan H 7 109,916
Europe &M 154,731
Others Hib 29,538
1,095,985

The revenue information above is based on delivery location

of the customers.

Non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets of the Group are all located in the

PRC.

LA BB TERE P &R
HoFh

AEBEFRPEE(ERT AR

oh) R B B 48 B4 B 2 BB AR
-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 NIER @
(b)  The segment information for the reportable segments is set (by TAFRE DI A D B E K E S0
out as below: N

Plastic components

Mold fabrication manufacturing Total
BARE SEMA MRS @5t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHBL TERT FHBIL TERT FHEIL
Revenue KA
External revenue NEB U A 356,245 739,740 1,095,985
Inter-segment revenue A28 24 A 80,867 — 80,867
Segment revenue s ON 437,112 739,740 1,176,852
Elimination i (80,867)
Revenue from external SINREBEUA
customers 1,095,985
Segment results DEEE 169,336 202,362 371,698
Other income and other ~ E Iz A 2 H 4th
gains/(losses) — net Wi/ (E18)
— HE 23,984
Selling expenses HERX (55,505)
Administration expenses 17 B i > (142,737)
Financial costs B E AR (11,179)
Profit before income tax [ Fff 18 % A1 % FI 186,261
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5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Segment Information (continued)

5 NIWER @

() Information regarding the Group’s revenue by nature: (0 ZAEERHEBHE>NOWRABFBAD
&R
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Revenue PN
Sales of goods $HE P m 1,061,883
Mold modification income 18 A2 M E R 34,102
Turnover 2] 1,095,985

Revenues of approximately HK$113,183,000 (2012:

W A #9113,183,0007% It (2012

HK$109,916,000) were derived from a single external 109,916,000/ 7t) Jh /R B &
customer. These revenues are attributable to the plastic —HINAREF - EZ%HK]\WQ?EEE

components manufacturing segment.

AEERED S

Other Income and Other Gains/(Losses) — Net 6 Hf l{ﬂ_l_)\ REMWE (&
e

B8)— 3%
2013 2012
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Other income Hi g A
Sales of scrap and surplus materials £ RE R K T/ o A L 7,078
Interest income F 2 WA 2,189
Transportation income BRIWA 1,523
Income on derivative financial instruments MESMIARA 2,191
Others HAh 4,557
17,538
Other gains/(losses) — net Ha s (BE)— 38
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 25 5 5B 3,941
Fair value changes on derivative financial MTESMITERARBEED
instruments 3,416
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEEYH WEISEBEOEE
equipment (Note 31(b)) (K17E31(b)) 911)
6,446
FIKEE(ZER)ERAT —O—=FF®115



Expenses by Nature

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

7 RUEE DA

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Changes in inventories of finished goods LR MmRFEXRTEES
and work in progress (49,627)
Raw materials and consumables used R K K FEA 431,689
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EERAAZ (H£8) 262,903
Depreciation and amortisation bi-% £ 46,679
Subcontracting expenses RITEH 82,683
Water and electricity expenditures KEEH 22,192
Transportation and travelling expenses EE R ERAX 21,109
Other taxes and levies HMiE 9,260
Maintenance expenses “wiEE R 11,038
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance FERE (BEREL), BE
for impairment of inventories 3,222
Allowance for receivables JE W SR IR 829
Operating lease payments LR E MR 7,912
Research and development costs Tt 2% B AN
— Raw materials and consumables used — R R R FEM 4,747
— Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) —EERHFZ (MiE8) 22,788
Commission expenses HeER 19,916
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 B %7 A 1,586
Expenses related to initial public offering EHEXR A AREENER 3,141
Advisory and legal service expenses BRREERE R 4,159
Advertising and promotion fees EERHEEER 3,005
Utilities and postage fees MENLEHE 3,966
Security and estate management expenses RE MY EEIEE 794
Bank charges and handling fees RITKRERFEE 1,047
Donations B —
Other expenses Hib 7,491
Total cost of sales, selling expenses HERAR HEMIRITH
and administrative expenses B %R 922,529
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Employee Benefit Expenses (Including 8 EERNM<(EIEZE S
Directors’ Emoluments) =

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FHBR FER

Wages and bonus I & RMIELT 264,486

Pension costs — defined contribution RN AR — € B G El2)

plans (a) 9,324

Other social security costs H AR A A 6,551

Others allowances and benefits H b )E B K & T 5,330

285,691

(@)  Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a (a) AKEFHEHE G IES AL HEH

defined contribution retirement scheme administrated and operated by I 7 7 BT EHE R GE fE Y JE BE (7 SR

the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contributes Gt 8 - 7K 5 F gy o B BT B 4 5] 1

funds which are calculated as 10%-20% (2012: 10%-20%) of the T T BT 155 B IE B F 19 # % 69 10%—

average employee salary as agreed by local municipal government to the 20% (20124 : 10%-20%) &+ & a9 £ &

scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees for the year. [BlZ 512 U A FEAIESRIKE

FIEEHE E °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

9 Directors’ and Senior Management’s 9 EFLSHREREME
Emoluments
The remuneration of each director of the Company during FRARARISEZTNHME T B
the year is set out below: T
Employer’s
Discretionary contribution to
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonus retirement scheme Total
BEMBRIK
EEpg we e BB FHEIHER =Xl
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR THx THx THExT FTEx TET FEx FTHEr TET ThAR

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Pui Leung FHREAE — 1,546 3,637 14 5,197

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEARE — 1,404 2,430 14 3,848

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEAE — 1,035 1,871 14 2,920

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RFELE = — — - -

Independent B

non-executive Directors FHTES

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy BETELT = — — - -

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung BBk E = = = — —

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong U A — — — — —

— 3,985 7,938 42 11,965

Notes: Hret -

0] Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael and Mr. Lee Leung (1) FHRIELE DREAFLERFR
Yiu were appointed as executive directors on 28 March 2013. They RBIEER2013F3 H28 H EZ (T
were directors of certain companies comprising the Group prior to RBHITEE - RALR A MK 7
the incorporation of the Company. BT IR A EEE T & F LAl

HEE -

(i) Mr. Cheung Fong Wa was appointed as an executive director on (i)  KRFEEFLER2013F11/H27H
27 November 2013. BEZERMTESE -

(i)~ Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. (i) FEEFIEL - B EER ZE
Tsang Wah Kwong were appointed as independent non-executive JE S £ R2013F 11 /27 H & Z
directors on 27 November 2013. FRBIIHNTEE -

(iv)  Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer. () BDEHLETBEREHITE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (continued)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 include
three (2012: three) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid to the
remaining two (2012: two) individuals during year are as

9 ESEhSRSHEEMME @

HZE2013F12A31H IEFE K
SEREEEMEALTEE=S
QONRF: ZR)ESF HB&B
BREXDT - RFERNEBTRA
QONRF : WMB)EZ=HTMALN

follows: M4
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T& T

Wages, salaries, allowance TE e ZEKEMER
and other benefits 2,250
Bonus TE4T 1,723
Contributions to pension plans RIK&FHEIHE R 28
4,001

The emoluments paid to the remaining two individuals fell
within the following bands:

RMESRMERSHEMA LTI HH
M T 5 R

2013 2012
Emolument bands M < 48 B
HK$1,500,000-HK$2,000,000 1,500,000 JT & 2,000,000 7% JT 1 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T & 2,500,000 JT 1 1

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2012: nil). Neither directors nor any of the
five highest paid individuals received any emolument from the
Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the year (2012: nil).

FA BEEEREXRNERE
Efl Bl € (2012 : |) - R
ExYgEMAEREHMALH
BERASBERETOME  (FR
{2 {5 A0 A 3 D0 A 7K 5% (8] 65 ) 22 )
K AE R BB (8 (20124F : M) o

FIKEERAERAT —O0O—=FF%119



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

10 Finance Costs

10 RE&E AR

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’'000
TERT FHET
Interest expense: FEMAX :
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable —EBRAEFRBHEEN
within 5 years RITEE 7,892
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable —EBRAFEBHEEN
above 5 years RITEE 3,287
11,179
Other finance costs H gt & X AR —
11,179
11 Income Tax Expense 11 Fr8RA<
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Current income tax BN ERFR 15 7%
— PRC corporate income tax —HEPEMER 40,613
Deferred income tax (Note 29) BIEFTS T (A7 5£29) 10,455
51,068
The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an ARARPRHAESHESTMA LR —
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is MEREERAAR Bt AR
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. AIERRENFSHESIEN -
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of EAFBRIZRBFERNMER
16.5% on the estimated assessable profit for the year (2012: i Al Fe B %K 16.5% (2012 4F -
16.5%). 16.5%) 5t T2 B 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities within the
Group incorporated in the PRC, calculated in accordance with
the relevant regulations of the PRC after considering the
available tax benefits. The applicable CIT rate is 25% (2012:
25%).

In 2012, a subsidiary was approved as New and High
Technology Enterprise, and accordingly, it was subject to a
reduced CIT rate of 15% for that year.

According to the CIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, a
withholding income tax of 10% will be levied on the
immediate holding companies outside the PRC when their
PRC subsidiaries declare dividend out of profits earned after 1
January 2008. A lower 5% withholding income tax rate is
applied when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are established in Hong Kong and fulfil
requirements under the tax treaty arrangements between the
PRC and Hong Kong.

No provision for income tax in BVI has been made as the
Group has no income assessable for income tax in BVI during
the year (2012: nil).

RISE(ZR) ARAR

11 PSR @

CEMESHRDIEAREBRAFH
AWM EBEENERTK
AELBEE Rt RO ESHH
BEBEREPBENMERAR
o @A EMBHRHMEAR25%
(20124 : 25%) °

R2012FE » — KK B R 7 it
EEESFEMECEYRNE FEB
BEIRMI15% D EMEHRRR -

WIS ETEHL - B20084F 1
A1HE EFEEIIEEZR
N A A R B K B R /) R 2008 4F 1
A1EBEAZSEMBRIMEFPE
AR B - I ZEEZERA A
BUR10% W IEINFTEH - B E
MBARNEZEERARRES
B S 75 4 o B ER & B FT AT 32 A9
MBEOLZHERRE - BIIZ5%
B R BN IBIN TSR -

AR & B R F R B R B
EWEBRERERBA BRI E
AREBELBEENAMEH &
# o (20124 : f®)

“O—=FF#%121



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

11 Income Tax Expense (Continued)

11 PSR @

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs N & B Bk BT 15 %4 B S A BT 8049 9
from the theoretical amount that would have arisen using the MIE T R T B 18 i B AR A
main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the Group due AAREBERMNEBELEMR KT

to the following:

EmMEANERESBFEER:

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before income tax bR AT 15 350 A1 g A 186,261
Tax calculated at applicable H25% B EE R X
corporate income tax rate of 25% STERFIE 46,565
Effects of: THSERNTZE -
— Income not subject to tax — BAMB KA (2,325)
— Expenses not deductible for tax — A HIEL R 1,629
— Tax on Reorganisation —HHTTIE —
— Withholding income tax on profit — S B AR BB ARSI
to be distributed from the b Eokick ik
group companies in the PRC 7,203
— Under provision in prior years —RBEFEREBETIR 735
— Accelerated research and — BB X I ET HBR
development deductible expenses (1,347)
— Utilisation of tax losses previously —HABERERNTIEEE
not recognised (34)
— Tax holiday and preferential tax rates — £ [@ /A 7] A £ 15 #) & % HA
available to the group companies LR ER (1,358)
51,068
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

12 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the
year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for
the year. In determining the weighted average number of ordinary
shares issued:

(@)  the 20,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued during the
Reorganisation (Note 1.2.3 and 1.2.6) were treated as if they
had been in issue since 1 January 2012;

(b)  of the 70,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued on 25
October 2013 (Note 25(c)(ii)) to Ultimate Shareholders in
settlement of indebtedness to Ultimate Shareholders, 15,474
shares were treated as if they were issued on 30 June 2013 (date
of agreements for Capitalisation of Indebtedness) at fair value
and 54,526 shares were treated as if they were bonus shares
that had been in issue since 1 January 2012;

(¢ the 599,910,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued on
20 December 2013 under the Capitalisation Issue (Note 25(d))
have been adjusted retrospectively to the numbers of ordinary
shares issued under (a) and (b) above as if the proportionately
higher numbers of shares had been in issue since the relevant
dates indicated; and

12

SRR

BFRERE N T VAR E B F B A A
EF‘E%‘?T TR B R 0 T 1 BREH

CRETCRITEBRAMEFS
%(E%=

(a) EAEZH(W? 2.3%1.2.6) B A
A7) B #1717 #9 20,000 f% T ﬁﬂx%ﬂz
B AEBE201291 A 1BED 2T

A A R20135F10 25 H 3t 4
ERGEERENER A E
% £770,000 % I i@ A (M 5E25(0)
(iiy) » H H154748% B% 15 Ty 18 1E
BB R2013F6 A30B (B &
BHEERCHBE) RAABEE
17 » 54,526 % i 10 T %% 1 1 10
2 A20129 118 #1704 R
B

(b) A

(0 AR TFMN2013412H208 1B #
& N1t % 17 (M 5225(d)) B 17
599,910,000 % & i ix B 38 M 58 B
ERIE LM i) R ()BT E
BRREE M2 B REREAR
HERZETEaLAz2RnHEE
&
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

12 Earnings Per Share (continued) 12 SRR @

(d) the 200,000,000 ordinary shares offered to the public (Note (d)

25(c)(iii)) were issued on 20 December 2013.

Profit attributable to owners of RRNEFEAR ARG F
the Company (HK$'000) (F#&T)

Weighted average number of ordinary & 317 & 3/ I A9 0
shares issued (thousands) T 8 (F )

Basic earnings per share (HK$) BREREFR (BT)

Diluted earnings per share during the year is the same as basic
earnings per share as the impact of over-allotment option at
31 December 2013 (Note 35) is negligible. There was no
dilutive potential ordinary share for the year ended 31

[ A 52 %% £ 1) 200,000,000 % & 4
% (Bt 5 25(c)ii)) J3 722013412
H20H 377 »

2013 2012

135,193

496,840
0.27

FR SREERFEFHRER
BFEBEMER REZEMN213
12 A31 8 /B8 58 i IR 4 (P &
BT EEM . B E2012F12

December 2012. A3MB L FEWE T E#FERE
TR o
13 Investments in a Subsidiary — Company 13 RME LRSI 2RE— NG
2013
HK$'000
F& T
Unlisted shares at cost T ARG R IE ET RS
Amounts due from subsidiaries (a) JFE U B /B A B ZXTE (a)
(@)  The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayments are (@) ZEFEAEIEWF. B HET

neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.
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13

Investments in a Subsidiary — Company (continued) 13

(b)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

(4&)

December 2013, all of which are limited liability companies:

Company nhame

DEEH

TK Industrial Holdings
Limited

TK International (BVI)
Limited

TK Plastic Products
(Suzhou) Limited

RTRBR M (FM)
BR QA

TK Mold (SZ) Limited

Place of
incorporation

A il B 3L it BE

BVI

RBRLES

BVI

RBRLES

PRC

th 5

PRC

RIEACRIDAERAR HHE

*  Shares held directly by the Company.

Principal activities
and place of
operation
FTEEER
FEE—8:iR1

Investment holding/
PRC
BEERH

Trading of plastic
product and molds/
PRC

BRHEMRER
g 5,/4

Manufacture of
plastic products/
PRC

SUEB B M
/H

Fabrication of mold/
PRC

BASME HE

(b)

RBE LI 2RE — KT

X AR2013F 128318/ £
EWRBRARI(EAEERAA) S

xR

Particulars of
issued share capital

EBRITRAFE

50,000 ordinary shares of

1 USD each
50,000 % & f% ™ &
1EZETTRERERK

100 ordinary shares of
1 USD each

100 i & Pz M (B
1ETTH T B

Paid in capital of
HK$10,000,000

& & 710,000,000

BT

Paid in capital of
HK$104,990,000

B & 7K 104,990,000

BT

* ARABEZEFEZRY °

RISE(ZR) ARAR

Interest
held

Frifs s

100%*

100%

100%

100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

13 Investments in a Subsidiary — Company (Continued) 13 NRBAIZIRE — KA 3

()
Principal activities
Place of and place of Particulars of Interest
Company name incorporation operation issued share capital held
FEEER
AEEW F 0 BX 3Z it Bh FEE—B:iR-1 ERTRAFE P #5 R 2
YD Trading (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Investment holding/ 1,000,000 ordinary 100%
Limited PRC shares of 1 HK$ each
ERES(BEB)ERLQR &E REER T E 1,000,000 f% & ik EI &
1B SRR
TK Mold (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Investment holding/ 1,000,000 ordinary 100%
Limited PRC shares of 1 HK$ each
ERIEE(EB)ERLQR &E REER T E 1,000,000 % & A% TE &
1B TTH SRR
TK Plastic (Suzhou) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding/ 1,000,000 ordinary 100%
PRC shares of 1 HK$ each
BT (M) BRAR BE REER "+ E 1,000,000 % % A% TE &
1B T SRR
TK Plastic (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Investment holding/ 1,000,000 ordinary 100%
Limited PRC shares of 1 HK$ each
RILTE(FEE)BRRR BE REER "+ E 1,000,000 % & A% T &
1B T SRR
YD Mold (SZ) Limited PRC Fabrication of mold/ Paid in capital of 100%
PRC HK$10,000,000
EREECRIDERAR FEH BESE HE & & 710,000,000
BT
TK Precision Plastic PRC Manufacture of Paid in capital of 100%
(SZ) Limited plastic products/ HK$105,50,000
PRC
ROTHEEDTEZE ORI 1 SUEBB S M & & 75 105,50,000
BIRAR] i BT
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14

15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$164,312,000 (2012: nil).

Land Use Rights — Group
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating

lease payments for land which are held on leases in the PRC and
the movement is analysed as follows:

14

15

RSB ARIGER

RARBAERRBRIENADNREAS
A FE 15 5% F A 164,312,00078 T (2012
F )

TifEMHIE—REES

AREERLiERENESERNFE
BEOFANLMMEMNHKLEEE
RIE - REEFHOFTMT

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FAET

Opening net book amount FREFE 25,501
Exchange differences ME W, = 5 )
Amortisation charges B (702)
2013 Deemed Distribution 2013 FR1ED K —
Closing net book amount FREEFE 24,792
Cost B AR 30,065
Accumulated amortisation ERE E (5,273)
Net book amount AREFE 24,792

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation on 31 May 2013, all
land use rights were transferred to Ultimate Shareholders (Notes
1.2.11 and 1.2.12) and were not retained by the Group.

The lease periods of land use rights are 50 years and are located in
the PRC. As at 31 December 2012, the remaining lease periods of
the Group’s land use rights ranged from 30 to 36 years.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s bank borrowings were
secured over land use rights with a total carrying amount of
HK$23,272,000.

MR2013F5A31B K EH%E " FTH
T FEAEYEETRERE (T
121N %1212) M EHAELEB RS -

T REMNAESAS0F  BUR
R R20125F 128318 "EEH
T FERENRGBEERR D BN T
30&36%F -

MN2012F12 8318 - REB B ITHE

B LA BRE 42 18 423,272,000 7T H) +
o5 A REEHEAR ©

RISE(ZR) ARAR

“O—=FF#127



16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Group

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

16 3% - MBE KR

Furniture,
fixtures and

—R5EE

Leasehold  Plant and computer Motor Construction
Buildings Improvements machinery equipment vehicles  in progress Total
HENE BER RE £EB
BF £ BE REERE RE EEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHET FHT FHT FHT
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE2MNFE12A31BLEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 59,038 10,157 86,316 6,727 1,081 1,791 165,110
Currency translation differences bE N =58 27) (23) (73) ?3) (1 — (127)
Additions NE = 9,792 74,430 3,274 — 57,762 145,258
Disposals RE — — (1,416) (19) — — (1,435)
2012 Transfer (Note 34(b)) 2012588 3% (M £ 34(b)) (11,887) — — — — — (11,887)
Transfer P 3,850 — 3,742 — — (7,592) —
Depreciation wE (3,753) (6,712) (28,846) (3,640) (255) — (43,206)
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 47,221 13,214 134,153 6,339 825 51,961 253,713
At 31 December 2012 M20124612A31H
Cost B AR 76,234 29,108 316,243 41,633 5,563 51,961 520,742
Accumulated depreciation ZHE (29,013) (15,894)  (182,090) (35,294) (4,738) — (267,029)
Net book amount REEE 47,221 13,214 134,153 6,339 825 51,961 253,713
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE201BF12A31A8LEE
Opening net book amount EER@FE 47,221 13,214 134,153 6,339 825 51,961 253,713
Currency translation differences EXEE 13 883 4,355 142 21 343 5,757
Additions NE 150 8,170 36,978 2,538 — 16,531 64,368
Disposals RE - - (1,410) (2) - - (1,412)
Transfer/Reclassification EE B8 (5,421) 3,547 5,657 - — (3,783) -
2013 Deemed Distribution 2013FBAED K (40,156) — (243) = — (65,052)  (105,451)
Depreciation nE (1,807) (10,448)  (33,149) (3,961) (117) - (49,482)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - 15,366 146,341 5,056 729 — 167,492
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12A31A8
Cost XA 30,809 41,708 356,260 43,673 5,584 — 478,034
Accumulated depreciation BitE (30,809) (26,342)  (209,919) (38,617) (4,855) —  (310,542)
Net book amount REFE — 15,366 146,341 5,056 729 — 167,492
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17

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Property, Plant and Equipment — Group (Continued)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories in
the profit or loss:

Cost of sales 85 & A AR
Selling expenses 8HE R X
Administration expenses THRAX

16

MR~ BB KRR

(&)

— RK&KE

FEHFARBZRNOTIER

2013
HK$°000
TERT

2012
HK$'000
THET

31,886
217
11,103

Certain bank borrowings of the Group were secured over property,
plant and equipment. Detailed information is disclosed in Note
27(a).

Intangible assets — Group

17

43,206

AEBNETRITEEADE  BFE
REEER - FAERBEENME

27(a) °

BIEEE—REHE

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$’000

FTHERT FHET

Opening net book amount FHREFE 5,492
Currency translation differences ME W, =5 (5)
Additions NE 1,448
Amortisation 5 (2,771)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 4,164
Cost [N 9,296
Accumulated amortisation EE E (5,132)
Net book amount BREFME 4,164

Amortisation was included in administrative expenses. No
impairment charge was recognised for the year (2012: nil).

B ATTRAN - FARERRE

S (20124 : &) -

RISE(ZR) ARAR

“O—=FF#129



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

18 Financial Instruments by Category

18 REHEINHNEMTE

Group Company
RE P NN
2013 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FH&T FET
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBRANEE
Loans and receivables: B R K EWEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b e Gk IE
(excluding prepayments and (T ERFEEMRIER
tax recoverable) AT Y Bl 7 1E) 180,674
Amount due from a subsidiary NG E ] =
Amounts due from related e NI =]
companies 137,013
Pledged bank deposits EEMIRITER 47,712
Deposits for non-current ERBRITEENZS
bank borrowings 2,611
Cash and bank balances R RIBITAH 94,084
462,094
Available-for-sale financial assets A ENEREE 24,664
Financial assets at fair value FERBERZEAABEYER
through profit or loss: ZEREE
Derivative financial instruments TESsITHE 1,543
488,301
Liabilities as per balance sheet XZEESBXRANEE
Liabilities measured at amortised REHEKNAFTEZAE
cost:
Trade and other payables 2 5 K E M FE 5B
(excluding non-financial (TBiEFEEmAasE)
liabilities) 165,268
Amounts due to related FEAST BA B & R RIE
companies 40,654
Amounts due to Ultimate FES AR IR R FIE
Shareholders 22,057
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENEIE S =
Bank borrowings RITEE 214,305
442,284
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

19 Inventories — Group 19 F&E—RK&EHE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Raw materials R #4 25,135
Work in progress B 109,204
Finished goods 25K @ 27,557
161,896
Less: allowance for impairment R E R (11,692)
150,204
The movements of allowance for impairment are analysed as BWEREZSSTWAT :
follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FH& T
At beginning of the year F 1) 8,461
Currency translation difference MEHER 9
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for BREGFE (BERD) BE
inventory obsolescence 3,222
Amounts written off =i —
At end of the year FR 11,692
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales for the year was FRNFAHEXNAZEEKRER AR
HK$856,667,000 (2012: HK$712,751,000). 856,667,000 7T (20124 : 712,751,000
BIT) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

20 Trade and Other Receivables — Group 20 EFKEMEWRIE—RE

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables Z 5 WK IE 159,292

Less: allowance for impairment Rk B R (3,672)

Trade receivables, net B 5 & WG IE 55 155,620

Bills receivable fE W E & —

Prepayments and deposits TENFHIBRIEZS 15,048

Value-added tax recoverable AT Y [@) 12 (8 Fi 4,967

Advances to employees RIEEBK 3,077

Export tax refund receivables AR T e YRR 18,184

Others Hib 3,793

200,689

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are BEZRWHBZEEMENLTIE
denominated in the following currencies: WL =L (g

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

usb ETT 125,960

RMB AREE 18,980

EUR B 7T 10,598

HK$ BT 3,754

159,292
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

20 Trade and Other Receivables — Group (Continued) 20 ?:’3 NEfEUYRRIE — RE
(%&)

The credit period granted to customers is generally between
30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables
from the date of sales is as follows:

BTEPHNEERBRENF30E
WHZH BHERHMER SR
WHRIBHREDTAT

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Less than 3 months =@AA 158,346
More than 3 months but not exceeding i@ =18 A B T~ iE —F

1 year 946

More than 1 year —F LAk —

159,292

The Group's sales are made to various customers. While there
is concentration of credit risk within a few major customers,
these customers are reputable with good track record.

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$3,112,000
(31 December 2012: HK$922,000) were past due but not
considered impaired. These related to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has been no significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The ageing analysis of these past due trade receivables is as
follows:

AEBNHEDNHHETRER
HAGERREFRETEER
F EZFEFEEGE ki
BRIFMERCE -

MN20135 128318 8 5 E I
X IE 3,112,000 7L (20124612 A
31H : 922,000/ ) B @ EB &k
WEAEDHE - ZFRHEER
AREFEBAERFEELHNET
BUBEFEB BEBAELS
TEEBHETEVERZEES
FIRBERE AAEEEEYT
KHBERES A SHEGD
W AR BB E o AL EI K
RZEERBTEECMER %FE
BEIE 5 U GRIE 2 BR ik D AT
T

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Less than 3 months =@AR 921
More than 3 months but not exceeding B8 =18 A T8 iE —F

1 year 1

922

RISE(ZR) ARAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

20 Trade and Other Receivables — Group (Continued) 20 ?:’3% NEfEUYRRIE — RE
(%&)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$3,774,000
(2012: HK$3,672,000), were impaired and covered by

(#8)

R2013FE 128318 B 5 E W&
T83,774,0007% 7T (20124F : 3,672,000

allowance. BIT) BIREN B E B -
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Less than 3 months =®AR 2,734

More than 3 months but not exceeding B8 =18 BB T iE —F

1 year 938
More than 1 year —F Ak —
3,672

The movements on the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B 5K RIBREREEZ W
T

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FH& T

At beginning of the year F 1) 4,743
Allowance for impairment BB B 829
Amounts written off as uncollectible SR NEIN QI Nl = Pl ok - (1,900)
At end of the year F R 3,672

The carrying amounts of other receivables were primarily
denominated in RMB and the fair values of trade and other
receivables approximate their carrying amounts as at 31
December 2013 and 2012.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk of trade and other receivables was the
carrying values of each class of receivables mentioned above.
The Group did not hold any collateral as security for these
receivables.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain past due and impaired assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

21 Cash and Cash Equivalents — Group and 21 RENRRESEM—NKE
Company )N ¥ N
Group Company
rEE b N
2013 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET
Cash and bank balances B KBTS 94,084
Bank overdrafts (Note 27) RITESZ (K 7E27) (3,905)
90,179
The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their REERSESEYNARBEREERE
carrying amount and represent maximum exposure to credit risk. ERE BAEKEERR -
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following RERREEEMUATIERE:
currencies:
Group Company
rEH b NN
2013 2012 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FAT FET
HK$ & TT 13,037
RMB AR 18,248
usb E v 59,316
EUR X T 3,483
94,084

FIKEERAERAT —O—=FF%135



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

22 Available-for-sale Financial Assets — Group 2 oJJHtPBENEREE —
2013 2012

HK$"000 HK$'000

FET FET

At beginning of the year =) 8,018
Additions NE 449,501
Disposals H & (432,855)
2013 Deemed Distribution (Note 1.2.12) 2013FRAED IR (Afat1.2.12) —

At end of the year FR 24,664

Available-for-sale financial assets represented investments in
unlisted structured wealth management products (including
investment in equity funds) managed by a high credit quality public
listed commercial bank in the PRC.

Available-for-sale financial assets are all denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2012, the fair values of available-for-sale
financial assets approximated their carrying amounts as they were
acquired close to the year end of 2012. As such, the comparable
market rate is close to the coupon rate and the effect of discounting
is not significant.
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24

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

Derivative Financial Instruments — Group 23 fTEEMTIBE—RE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Derivative financial assets — Current MEERMEE—RE 798
Derivative financial assets — Non-current PTESRMEE —FERE 745
1,543

These were variable and fixed currency contracts, and changes in
fair values of these derivative financial instruments are recorded in
“Other gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation on 31 May 2013, all
the derivative financial instruments were transferred to Ultimate
Shareholders (Notes 1.2.11 and 1.2.12), and were not retained by
the Group.

Pledged Bank Deposits — Group

As at 31 December 2012, pledged bank deposits of the Group are
denominated in RMB and were deposits held by the bank in a
segregated account as security for borrowings from the bank. As at
31 December 2012, the weighted average interest rate was 1.36%
per annum.

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation on 31 May 2013, all
pledged bank deposits were transferred to Ultimate Shareholders
(Notes 1.2.11 and 1.2.12), and were not retained by the Group.

24

BERAZEMETEBALN  MEFIT
EERTAAARBENZESHLENA G
2EREROE MK (BE)—F
BIET -

MR2013F5 831 B EEHATK 2 & 67
EeMITAE 2 HPEETFTERRE
(M sE1.211%1.2.12) > MM E B AR E
ERHE -

ERBRTER—NES

R2012F12 8318 AEEHE K #H
BITHEREUAARESE  WHIRT
BE TRELEFPEARITEEN
o PR20129F 12 A318 » jniE 5
FEREE1.36% °

MR2013F583MBEHATRK 2% B
EHRTHEAREEPEETREBRE
(M sE1.211%1.2.12) > MM E B K E
ERHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

25 Share Capital And Share Premium 25

(@) Details of the authorised number of ordinary shares with a
par value of HK$0.1 per share of the Company are as follows:

AR NG B 17} i (8

(@ ARRBREMEIIETZIER
BOEEBBFHBHT

Authorised number Authorised

of ordinary shares share capital

EEREEHE EERA

HK$'000

FAT

At 28 March 2013 7201343 A28 H 3,800,000 380
(Date of Incorporation) (Note 1.2.3) (FEfR A B H7)

(Hfa£1.2.3)
Additions 190 1,996,200,000 199,620
At 31 December 2013 7R2013F12A31H 2,000,000,000 200,000

(b)  Details of issued shares are analysed as follows:

) CBITEROHFBIMAOT :

Number of Ordinary Share
Group shares shares premium Total
rEE BR#%HEE ZER R EE F
(thousands) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&) FHT FHET FHETT
At 28 March 2013 (Date of M201353H28H
Incorporation) (Note 1.2.3) (GEM M B8)
(Bfet1.2.3) 10 1 — 1
Issuance of shares for 4 B — R B B
acquisition of a subsidiary NEIETRG
(9[0) (o) 10 1 — 1
Issuance of shares in relation ShEBE R
to Capitalisation of B& 17 (i)
Indebtedness (c)(ii) 70 7 — 7
Issuance of shares by BBAREEET
Public Offering (c)(iii) B A (c)iii) 200,000 20,000 230,000 250,000
Capitalisation issue (d) B A7) 599,910 59,991 (59,991) -
Share issuance costs BRADBATR A — — (6,268) (6,268)
Share issuance costs BENFEERD
transferred from W17 B 1T R AR
capital reserve (Note 26) (Htz£26) — — (9,737) (9,737)
2013 Deemed Distribution BEARFEEED
transferred from capital 2013 R AE
reserve (e) 2k (e) — — (174,522) (174,522)
Transferred from capital BENEEER
reserve (Note 26) (Hfzt26) — — 228,661 228,661
At 31 December 2013 72013124318 800,000 80,000 208,143 288,143
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25 Share Capital And Share Premium (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

25 BRARKBR DR B @

(Continued) by (&)
Number Ordinary Share
Company of shares shares premium Total
ARATH ii&vig gz ZBER % 17 %5 8 F
(thousands) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(F5) FE T FE T FE T
At 28 March 2013 (Date of 4201343 H28H
Incorporation) (Note 1.2.3) (MR B H)
(BtaE1.2.3) 10 1 — 1
Issuance of shares for LU RS — [ B B
acquisition of a subsidiary UNETECE G ErN ()
(o)) 10 1 — 1
Issuance of shares in relation gt & 7% & ANk 377
to Capitalisation of R 15 (c)(ii)
Indebtedness (c)(ii) 70 7 — 7
Issuance of shares by BRAARAEERT
Public Offering (c)(iii) R& 17 (<)(iii) 200,000 20,000 230,000 250,000
Capitalisation issue (d) B A3 17(d) 599,910 59,991 (59,991) —
Share issuance costs R& 1 2% 17 K 2N — — (6,268) (6,268)
Share issuance costs BEARNFHERD
transferred from capital B& 17 B AT A A
reserve (Note 26) (K&t 26) — — (9,737) (9,737)
Transferred from capital BENFEEE
reserve (Note 26) (K7 5t26) — — 228,661 228,661
At 31 December 2013 2013 12H31H 800,000 80,000 382,665 462,665

Details of shares issued as at 31 December 2013 are as

R2013F 12 831H B % 17 ix 9

follows: BT :
Number of Share Equity interests as at
Shareholder shares capital 31 December 2013
M2013512H31H
R =R KR4 E R 2 i iR #E
HK$ (%)

BT
Eastern Mix £® 408,000,000 40,800,000 51.0
Lead Smart B 86,400,000 8,640,000 10.8
Cheer Union izl 53,760,000 5,376,000 6.7
Normal Times i 51,840,000 5,184,000 6.5
Public shareholders NRIGE 200,000,000 20,000,000 25.0
800,000,000 80,000,000 100.0
FUIE®ZBR)ERAT —O—=5F#&139



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

25 Share Capital And Share Premium (Continued)

()

(i)

(iif)

As described in Note 1.2.6, on 17 April 2013, the
Company acquired the entire equity interest in TK
Industrial Holdings Limited from Ultimate Shareholders
by crediting the existing 10,000 nil paid shares in issue
as fully paid and issuing a total of 10,000 ordinary
shares.

On 30 June 2013, pursuant to various novation,
assignment and capitalisation agreements entered into
among others, the Company and Eastern Mix, to settle
the amounts due to related companies of
HK$129,950,000 arising from the equity transfers in the
Reorganisation as set out in Notes 1.2.5, 1.2.7 and 1.2.9
and debts due to various related companies with a total
amount of HK$98,711,000, Eastern Mix was assigned
the rights of and the Company assumed the obligations
of a total debt balance of HK$228,661,000. The
Company and Eastern Mix agreed that the indebtedness
be capitalised (“Capitalisation of Indebtedness”) by
issuing a total of 70,000 ordinary shares of the
Company to the existing shareholders designated by
Eastern Mix. The above-mentioned shares were issued
on 25 October 2013. The amount was credited to the
capital reserve account and has been subsequently
transferred to the share premium account upon
incorporation of the Company.

On 20 December 2013, the Company issued 200,000,000
ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.1 each in the
Company at HK$1.25 per share by way of public offering
("Public Offering”). On the same date, the Company’s
shares were listed on the Stock Exchange. The difference
between the gross proceeds of HK$250,000,000 and the
issued and fully-paid share capital of HK$20,000,000,
amounting to HK$230,000,000, was credited to the share
premium account.
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25 RRINKZBR 17} )i 18 )

(0)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

a0 B FE1.2.6F7 it - 722013
F48178 ARRBAK
B % 17 3R A 10,000 B & #
BREBGOARIEE SR
It 2% 77 & #£10,000/% & @
BZ B B & R IR R BB TK
Industrial Holdings Limited &

25 A A 35 -

R2013F6 A30H @ R &
(EFBR) A2 RER
AW E125127k
129FT#E R EAHRRES
;%ﬁﬁ?’iﬁﬁrﬁﬁfﬁ B N &)

X I8 129,950,00078 T & fE
H%HEF% B ARERKE &
98,711,000,%%5 JC R M K R
o EERERNEHZE
SR EERMmARF &K
& 18 75 42 %8228,661,000/5
THEEZ - ARRAIREER
WE BBAEAR ﬂﬁii
EEMRERRETEH
70,000 0% 3 i A% #5 & 7% & A
{E(TEBEARL]) - Lilif
2 2 M2013F 105258 &
T-BRSEEEAERNH
HER WREEBRADEFE
ML ERE=RMDEE
EEO

&

B2013412820H ° &
ABEBARMBE( QM
E DR E K125 T 1T
200,000,000 0% A~ 2 7 & &
@@Oh’%nﬂ’] @HX
REAB - ARQ&E RS
iﬁﬁiﬁoﬁﬂ%?ﬁlﬁ%%ﬁ
250,000,000 T 81 B 2 17
&%&Eﬂx X f% 220,000,000
78 JT 2 #Z %230,000,000 &
T AR & BB o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

25 Share Capital And Share Premium (continued) 25 PBRANKR% 17 i 1B (@)

(d) Following the Public Offering on 20 December 2013, the (d) T2013€FE12 8208 AHEE%
Company capitalised an amount of HK$59,991,000 standing AARBEBRDRERMNERS
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company %659,991,0008 L T & A - A
by applying such sum in paying up in full at par 599,910,000 LA 3% T (B 5% 2 599,910,000 f% #5 1R
shares for allotment and issue to Eastern Mix, Lead Smart, AN B SR =1 o o ok S
Cheer Union and Normal Times in proportion to their TFER ZTE EHPLRERKD
respective shareholdings in the Company (“Capitalisation B ([EAREET]) -

[ssue”).

(e)  The amount represents a transfer of the outstanding balance (e) ZEFEIEB2013FRIED KK
of 2013 Deemed Distribution from the capital reserve account EEEMBEEAREERERE K
to the share premium account during the year. FERMDRER -

(f)  All shares issued rank pari passu with each other. ) FEEETROhEEMRNESR

A& o
26 Other reserves 26 HfthfEfe
Group
AEE
Statutory Capital Exchange

reserves reserve reserve Total
EERE B #E BB L et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FH&T FH&T FAT

At 1 January 2012 M2012F181H 22,214 — 78,475 100,689

Share issuance costs IR D BE 1T A AN — (1,599) — (1,599)

Transfer to statutory reserves [ R e -k 14,173 — — 14,173

Currency translation differences & i, = 58 = = (47) (47)

At 31 December 2012 R2012512H31H 36,387 (1,599) 78,428 113,216
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

26 Other Reserves (Continued)

26 Hithf s

Group Company
TEE Vi NN
Statutory Capital Exchange Capital
reserves reserve reserve Total reserve
EEME EXRGEE 2 ELREE FE N
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT FA T FH&T
At 1 January 2013 M2013F181H 36,387 (1,599) 78,428 113,216 —
Share issuance costs % 7 8% 77 B A — (8,138) — (8,138) (9,737)
Share issuance costs transferred % & Z= i% {7 % (Z BR
to share premium account N S N — 9,737 — 9,737 9,737
2013 Deemed Distribution 2013 F 1R 1ED K
(Note 1.2.12) (Ktat1.2.12) (35,001) (174,522)  (58,827) (268,350) —
Transfer from share premium & & {7 )4 B BR 6 8
account (Note 25 (e)) (Kt &% 25(¢)) — 174,522 — 174,522 —
Capitalisation of Indebtedness & 75 & &1t
(Note 25(c)(ii) (Bt & 25(c)(ii)) — 228,661 — 228661 228,661
Transfer to share premium EHEZERMDREER
account (Note 25 (c)(ii)) (K1 7 25(c)(ii) —  (228,661) —  (228,661) (228,661)
Transfer to statutory reserves — B &= X FE R E 6,532 — — 6,532 —
Currency translation differences [E 3, = %8 — — 3,194 3,194 —
At 31 December 2013 20135128318 7,918 — 22,795 30,713 —

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make
appropriation of not less than 10% of its net income after
taxes to legal reserve. Further appropriation is optional when
the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more of its
registered capital. Upon approval from the board of directors,
the statutory reserves can be used to offset accumulated
losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

27 Borrowings — Group 27 EE&— &
2013 2012
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER F#& T
Non-current FE BP A
Bank borrowings RITEE
— secured (a) — B () 71,164
— guaranteed (b) — B ER(D) 14,332
— unsecured — EE A —
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings i : JEENERE & Z R B 20 H (33,336)
52,160
Current B HA
Bank overdrafts SRITEX 3,905
Bank borrowings wITHEE
— secured (a) — B () 114,639
— guaranteed (b) — B ERD) 10,265
— unsecured — R I —
Total short-term bank borrowings RHRITIEERR 128,809
Current portion of non-current borrowings B IERNHEE 2 RE B 33,336
162,145
Total borrowings EEHMEE 214,305
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

27 Borrowings — Group (Continued) 27 EE—MN&EBE @

(@) Bank borrowings amounting to HK$17,164,000 as at 31 (@) M2013F12A318 RTEE
December 2013 (2012: HK$185,803,000) were secured over 17,164,000/ 7T (20124 : 185,803,000
the following: BIT) DAL T B IEEERA

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Plant and machinery B B i 22 83,849

Buildings B 3,083
Investment properties of related companies B AR MR EE

owned by Ultimate Shareholders 49,498

Pledged bank deposits EHEPRITER 47,712

Land use rights + b {55 R 23,272

Deposits for non-current borrowings FAHEE &S 2,611

210,025

(b) As at 31 December 2012, bank borrowings amounting to (b)y M2012F12A31B L 1TEE

HK$24,597,000 were secured over the following: 24,597,000 7T Jh A LA N & IE 1
AR -
() joint and several guarantees given by Ultimate () HEERBRFEREHERRE
Shareholders; and RER: K&
(i)  corporate guarantees provided by certain related iy XRABETESEHEESR
companies in which certain directors of the Company BEm e s T @A e R
have beneficial interests. B A B HELR o

()  The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in (0 EEZEREESDRNATIEE:
the following currencies: & :

2013 2012

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FEx T T

HK$ B TT 116,400
RMB AR 87,640
usb ETT 10,265
214,305
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

27 Borrowings — Group (Continued)

(d)

The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate changes and

27 BEa—REB @

d REEEBERAHMEEHENF

the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet dates is as ZEEFERRAS LN EHTER

follows: m
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTHER AT

Borrowings at floating rates FENEEE
6 months or less 61& A LA 182,111
6-12 months 6% 1218 A 23,905
206,016
Borrowings at fixed rates EMEBE 8,289
Total st 214,305
()  The borrowings are repayable as follows: (e) EEERUTHRAEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Within 1 year 16K 162,145
Between 1 and 2 years 158285 24,175
Between 2 and 5 years 2E54F 23,150
Over 5 years 5 A 4,835
214,305
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
Wholly repayable within five years ARAFRNEHEER 206,016
Not wholly repayable within five years BERAERNEHEE 8,289
214,305
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE

27 Borrowings — Group (Continued)

MENTS (continued)

27 B&—MhEBm@m

(f)  The effective weighted average interest rates at the balance ) EBEEABEXRAHNERMETS
sheet dates are as follows: MEMT :
2013 2012
Bank borrowings denominated in: T3 G ENRTT
BE:
HK$ BT 3.30%
RMB ARE 6.55%
usb X 2.58%
3.30%
(99 The carrying amounts and fair value of non-current (9) FENHEENEREERAALER
borrowings are as follows: K
2013 2012
HK$"000 HK$000
FTET FHET
Carrying amounts REE 52,160
Fair value (level 2) NRE(E2E) 47,207
Weighted average discount rate used ANRERNETES
for fair value (%) BEER K (%) 5.00
28 Trade and other payables — Group 28 ESNHEHMMEMRIE — RE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTERT FE& T
Trade payables Z 5 I8 121,000
Deposits received from customers BEREPES 118,207
Wages and staff welfare benefits payable BT TE NIESEF 55,566
Accrual for expenses and other payables FESE R S M E Ath fE S B
(Note (a)) (K15t (@a) 44,268
Other taxes payable H A fE T FLIE 2,761
341,802
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

28 Trade and Other Payables — Group (Continued) 28 EZNHEMEMRIE —RE

(&)

(@  The amount mainly represented construction costs payable, (@) ZANEXBIEENEEKANNE
and accruals for listing expenses, electricity and commission SFFEmAY BAERAEEAX -
expenses.

(b) The Group’s trade payables were denominated in the by AEBEFEMNFKENTYER
following currencies: R

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FE T

RMB AR¥ 97,479

usb ETT 11,451

HK$ BT 11,023

EUR BT 1,047

121,000

The carrying amounts of accrued expenses and other payables FE T 7 2 R H b B A FRIE A BR TE
were primary denominated in RMB. BEZERAARKEE-

() The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: (0 BISEMZEHNRERITOT :

2013 2012

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET F#& T

0-90 days 0£90H 112,323
91-120 days 912 120H 6,189
121-365 days 121 %2365 H 1,560
Over 365 days HiB365H 928
121,000

(d)  The fair values of trade and other payables approximated their (d) BZREMENKIENRA D EHR
carrying amounts. HEEEERS °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

29 Deferred Income Tax — Group

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax relates to the same
taxation authority. The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities

29 WHEFSIHR—REEH

WEEEATERENSNPHIAE E
AR EAEERE  BMAARE—
MBEEBBEZAENR MEEHEE
ERBEERAFER EEHBEER

is as follows: BETWOT :
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT T& T
Before offsetting 3K &8 A
Deferred income tax assets: EREFTE A E
— to be recovered after more — R EBE121E A & UG
than 12 months 2,243
— to be recovered within 12 months — R 12ME A Rk 4,462
6,705
Deferred income tax liabilities: ELEFEHARE:
— to be settled within 12 months —#BR1NR2EARNEHE (18,490)
After offsetting K%
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTS R E E 5,892
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFEHRAE (17,677)

As at 31 December 2013, deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities were offset, where they are in the same entity,
to the extent of HK$778,000 (31 December 2012: HK$813,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

29 Deferred Income Tax — Group (Continued) 29 EEFER —NEB @
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as BERSHREELRAEESHOT -
follows:

Accelerated

Deferred income tax Accrued
tax assets depreciation expenses Tax losses Total
ELEFRBHREE bR B IE T B SR X BRIEEE CEil
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T# T T#T
As at 1 January 2012 2012118 7,396 2,452 88 9,936
Currency translation MEHEH
differences (15) 2 — (13)
Recognised in the profit 18 = IR ER
or loss (4,192) 1,062 (88) (3,218)
As at 31 December 2012 FA20124F 12 A31H 3,189 3,516 — 6,705
As at 1 January 2013 R2013F1H1H 3,189 3,516 — 6,705
Currency translation ME W ZE 5
differences 58 76 — 134
Recognised in the profit M= R R
or loss (2,411) 1,675 — (736)
2013 Deemed Distribution 2013 1R ES & (223) (633) — (856)
As at 31 December 2013 72013512 A31H 613 4,634 — 5,247
Revaluation

of derivative
financial Withholding

Deferred income tax liabilities instruments income tax Total
BEMTE

EEFmBHEE ¢@MT A FEHFBH &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T FET T

As at 1 January 2012 R2012%F1HA1H — (11,253) (11,253)
Recognised in the profit or loss RE &= RER (34) (7,203) (7,237)
As at 31 December 2012 2012912 A31H (34) (18,456) (18,490)
As at 1 January 2013 20131 H1H (34) (18,456) (18,490)
Recognised in the profit or loss 18 2 AR T 3R = (4,114) (4,114)
2013 Deemed Distribution 2013 F R 1ED IR 34 16,834 16,868
As at 31 December 2013 2013412 A31H — (5,736) (5,736)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

29

30

Deferred Income Tax — Group (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits
through the future taxable profits is probable.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any tax losses. As
at 31 December 2012, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax asset of HK$801,000 in respect of the tax losses
amounting to HK$4,852,000 as their recoverability was uncertain.

Dividends

Interim dividends totaling HK$226,559,000 (2012: HK$54,956,000)
were paid to the then shareholders during the year before the
listing of shares of the Company. The rate for these dividends and
the number of shares ranking for these dividends are not presented
as such information is not considered meaningful for the purpose
of these consolidated financial statements.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 of
HK$0.018 per share, amounting to a total dividend of
HK$14,879,000, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting
on 6 June 2014. These consolidated financial statements do not
reflect this dividend payable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

31 Notes to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

31 BHBEREXRMSE

(@) Recondiliation of profit before income tax to cash generated (@) BRATIEFRIRMNELEMERE
from operations: ZHERK
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before income tax BR AT 45 B0 A1 g A 186,261
Adjustments for: HE
Finance cost (Note 10) B E KA (et 10) 11,179
Interest income (Note 6) A BU A (Kfit6) (2,189)
Depreciation of property, plant ME BEEEGEITE
and equipment (Note 16) (Kt 16) 43,206
Amortisation of land use right (Note 15)  + b {5 FR #&E #6 85 (B7 72 15) 702
Amortisation of intangible assets | EESE (ME17)
(Note 17) 2,771
Loss on disposal of property, plant BREVE BMENMEREBEEE
and equipment (Note 6) (Htite) oM
Fair value changes on derivative PTEESMTERAAEBEES
financial instruments (Note 6) (Kt:t6) (3,416)
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance FE (EEaEm),~
for inventory (Note 7) Bt (Mt aE7) 3,222
Allowance for account receivables FE W AR SR (Mt 7)
(Note 7) 829
Changes in working capital: EEEEE:
Inventories FE (53,870)
Trade and other receivables E 5 N E b fE W A (47,720)
Trade and other payables B 5 & H h & 5RI8 106,809
Cash generated from operations BEPSHE 248,695
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

31 Notes to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds from
disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise:

31 SHIRE R E XM @

by REHBAERERA LHEY
X BEMRBRERARRE:

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FBT

Net book amount REFE

2012 Transfer 20126 8% 11,887
Other disposals Hi & 1,435
13,322
Loss on disposal (Note 6) & BB (ite) 911)
Proceeds from disposal & P13 5K 18 12,411

(¢)  The principal non-cash transactions include the following:
(i) 2013 Deemed Distribution as described in Note 1.2.12;
(i)  Capitalisation of Indebtedness as described in Note
25(c)ii); and

(i) Capitalisation Issue (Note 25(d)).

32 Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2012: nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

33 Commitments 33 A
The Group had the following capital commitments: REE BT ERASE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’'000
TERT FHT
In respect of the acquisitions of plant RWEYWE BEEZEMS -
and equipment, contracted but BT 4B R IERE
not provided for 966
In respect of the construction of NEEEFTME -
buildings, authorised but not EERERM AN
contracted for 29,780
30,746

The Group leases premises under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

AEBRENAIBHEEHEER
AEEME - AKET A HHEE
EHEETHR AR MK

follows: HENRBBEROT :
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Not later than one year —F R
— to related companies — B A =
— to third parties —%=5 2,356
2,356
Later than one year and not later —FHEAFA
than five years
— to related companies — B A A =
— to third parties —F=75 3,015
3,015
5,371
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

34 Related Party Transactions

The following companies and individuals were related parties
of the Group that had transactions or balances with the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2013:

Name of the related party
BBE A

36 ABAXS

LT AR RBEABREZE2013F
NANBIEFEEAEHRAF X
SREHRNAEE 2@ ¢

Relationship with the Group
HAKEZBR

TK Technology Holdings Ltd.
RIBBEEERERAA

Shenzhen Dangli Trading Development Limited

AINELEZHRBR AT

TK Audio Limited

TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd.*
IR CRIDBR AT

TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd.*
FEIZBBORIDBRAF

TK Mold Limited*
RIEEBRAA

Shenzhen Dongbo Mold Limited*
AINTREREELFR AR~

TK Group Limited

Eastern Mix

X

Lead Smart
o}

Normal Times
i
Cheer Union

e

Operation unit of Jin Baoli Mold and Ironware
of Gongming (“Jin Baoli”)
APASENEEARSLEN(2ERD

* Companies not transferred to the Group on Reorganisation (Note 1.2.11) *
and (Note 1.2.12) and became related parties after Reorganisation date.
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An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREHNE R

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREHNE R

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREHNE R

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREHNER

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREHNE R

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBREHNE R

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREHNE R

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRRZEHNOER

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREHNE R

An entity controlled by a director

ESEZEHNER

An entity controlled by a director
EEEtlnER

An entity controlled by a director

EEmAMER

An entity controlled by a close family member of
a director

E=ENRBEANER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

34 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 34 FABEA R % @)

Other than the related party transactions disclosed in Note 1, 9, BrffTaE1 92527 R30FTH# &
25, 27 and 30, the following transactions with related parties MEB I RSP 2N REBRE

were undertaken by the Group during the year. NEBEB T ETHRZAT
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Subcontracting expenses paid (Note (i) K T & (M 5E) 2,006

Operating lease expenses paid (Note (i) BINEEHEEA

(K7 &2 (i) —

2012 Transfer (Note (i) 2012 5F 8 38 (H 72 (in) 11,887

Notes: Bt -

0] The amount represented mold subcontracting services provided by () EAEELEFRANEART
Jin Baoli. R °

(i) The amount represented rental expenses for land and buildings for (i) EZANIEIE AR AL AR R E# B A A
factory and office purposes paid to companies controlled by STEIBREIRNZEHFER T H
Ultimate Shareholders, which were determined with reference to REFHHELHS  HEEET
independent property valuation. Y E G EETE -

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain buildings with a (i) 2 F2012F 1231 H 1F F Z -
net book amount of HK$11,887,000 were transferred to JHBR E (8 A 11,887,000% 7T #9 &
companies controlled by Ultimate Shareholders for a consideration FRFEEZETFTRARRILER
of HK$11,887,000 (“2012 Transfer”). #) 2\ &] - 1L 18 73 11,887,000% 7T

([2012F #35%]) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

34 Related Party Transactions (continued) 34

(i)

(ii)

The balances due to Ultimate Shareholders were
denominated in RMB. They were unsecured and
interest-free, and were settled in 2013.

Balances due from related companies — Group

(i)

(ii)

RE B h R 2 (@)

JE SRR &R T A A
REFHE ZEEHBAER
ke B e K2013F
BEE o

fEU B8 8% NS &S B — IR

£8

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

— Shenzhen Dangli Trading —RYNELEZER
Development Limited AR A A 131,779
— TK Technology Holdings Ltd. —RIBEEEBRA A 5,234
137,013

The balances due from related parties were
denominated in RMB. They were unsecured, interest-
free and non-trading in nature. Their fair values
approximated their carrying amounts. Such balances
were fully repaid in 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANC

34 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(iii) Balances due to related companies — Group

— Jin Baoli — S E A
— TK Group Limited — TK Group Limited
— TK Audio Limited — TK Audio Limited

IAL STATEMENTS (continued)

34 At AXRZ @

lii) BB L SGE — R

£8

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET

936
34,020
5,698

The balances due to the related parties were
denominated in RMB. They were unsecured and
interest-free. The balance with Jin Baoli was trading
nature and due within 6 months, and all other balances
with related parties were non-trading nature. Their fair
values approximated their carrying amounts.

The amounts represented dividends receivable from a
subsidiary and were denominated in HK$. Their fair values
approximated their carrying amounts at the year-end date.

40,654

ENBETERIIAAR
BitE - %FERREER
el -BEeBENNGERA
BEEME ARANEARE
Hi o BREARE T PR A E AL
HEOBIFEBEMHE - AR
EEEREEMES -

% AR IR R R U — I B A B 2 X
B ABTIE - RFHEE &
AREREEKmERS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]

34 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 34 FABEA R % @)

The amounts due to subsidiaries were denominated in RMB.
They were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
Their fair values approximated their carrying amounts at the
year-end date.

The compensations paid or payable to key management
personnel for employee services are shown below:

FEAT P B A B SRR T IA AR B &L
B -ZEXARERT 2ER
BREFBEE - EARERER
FREBMEEERS -

o

REERKENEENEIEER
ABZ HBES 0T

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE e kiEa 23,496
Pension costs — defined BREKA— EREE RS

contribution plans 95

23,591

Each of Ultimate Shareholders jointly and severally has
undertaken to indemnify and keep each of the Group’s
companies fully indemnified against all claims and losses
suffered or incurred by any company of the Group as a result
of or in connection with, amongst others, the use of the land
and buildings owned by certain related companies by any
company of the Group as tenants, as these related companies
have not obtained the approval from the relevant authorities
in relation to the lease arrangements of such land and
buildings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])

35 Subsequent Events 35 HAZEE1a

In conjunction with the Public Offering (Note 25(c)i)), on 15 &EE N EE (W EE25(i) - 72014
January 2014, China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited, the F1AI5H AHBEZREAFRHE
Sponsor of the Public Offering, exercised an over-allotment option. FBHEEB)ERRAACTHFEBERER
As a result, the Company issued 26,600,000 ordinary shares of WEo Rtk KRB ARBEFRK25
HK$0.1 each at the subscription price of HK$1.25 per share. The 78 7T ¥ 17 26,600,000 i% & % I (B 0.1
difference between the gross proceeds of HK$33,250,000 and the TLZ & @A o BTSSR IE 48 %533,250,000
issued and fully-paid share capital of HK$2,660,000, amounting to 78T B2 1T I K B Bk 45 2,660,000,8
HK$30,590,000, was credited to the share premium account. The JC 2 Z= $830,590,000/% 7T & 5t A K 9
related share issuance cost of HK$831,000 was debited to the share i (B R o B B AR 15 31T A A831,000 7%
premium account. TTE B R BRI °
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T FHETT FHET
(unaudited)
(REEE)
Revenue A 484,604 536,104 781,750 1,095,985
Net profit for the year &R QBI#HEH A
attributable to the JE AL F 2 45 R
owners of the
Company 24,024 44,973 84,488 135,193
As at 31 December
M12831A
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T FET THET
(unaudited)
(R&EE)
Total assets BEE 372,021 538,812 769,772 950,877
Total liabilities waE 255,022 402,950 571,994 674,508
Total equity S 4aEs 116,999 135,862 197,778 276,369
Notes: B & -

The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended 31
December 2012 and 2013 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2012 and 2013 are those set out on pages 62 to 159 of this
annual report.

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 and of the assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2010 and 2011 have been extracted from the Prospectus.

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
of the assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2009 were unaudited and were
prepared by the management.

The above summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group had been
in existence throughout these financial years.
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